
 

Eugene City Council Agenda May 13, 2015 

 

    
    

EUGENE CITY COUNCIL AGENDAEUGENE CITY COUNCIL AGENDAEUGENE CITY COUNCIL AGENDAEUGENE CITY COUNCIL AGENDA    
May 13, 2015May 13, 2015May 13, 2015May 13, 2015     

 

12:00 PM    CITY COUNCIL CITY COUNCIL CITY COUNCIL CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSIONWORK SESSIONWORK SESSIONWORK SESSION    

        Harris HallHarris HallHarris HallHarris Hall    

        125 East 8125 East 8125 East 8125 East 8thththth    AvenueAvenueAvenueAvenue    

        Eugene, Oregon 97401Eugene, Oregon 97401Eugene, Oregon 97401Eugene, Oregon 97401    

    

 
 

Meeting of Meeting of Meeting of Meeting of May 13, 2015May 13, 2015May 13, 2015May 13, 2015; ; ; ;     

Her Honor Mayor Kitty Piercy PresidingHer Honor Mayor Kitty Piercy PresidingHer Honor Mayor Kitty Piercy PresidingHer Honor Mayor Kitty Piercy Presiding 

 

CouncilorsCouncilorsCouncilorsCouncilors 

George Brown, President  Pat Farr, Vice President 

Mike Clark    George Poling 

   Chris Pryor    Claire Syrett  

   Betty Taylor    Alan Zelenka 
 

 
 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION and MEETING OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY  
Harris Hall 
 
12:00 p.m. A. A. WORK SESSION: 

         Eugene 
Water & Electric Board Riverfront Redevelopment    
        Project and 
Riverfront Urban Renewal District Investments 

 
*time approximate 

 
 
The Eugene City Council welcomes your interest in these agenda items.  This meeting location is wheelchair-
accessible.  For the hearing impaired, FM assistive-listening devices are available or an interpreter can be provided 



 

Eugene City Council Agenda May 13, 2015 

with 48 hours' notice prior to the meeting.  Spanish-language interpretation will also be provided with 48 hours' 
notice.  To arrange for these services, contact the receptionist at 541-682-5010.  City Council meetings are telecast 
live on Metro Television, Comcast channel 21, and rebroadcast later in the week.   
 
City Council meetings and work sessions are broadcast live on the City’s Web site.  In addition to the live broadcasts, 
an indexed archive of past City Council webcasts is also available.  To access past and present meeting webcasts, 
locate the links at the bottom of the City’s main Web page (www.eugene-or.gov). 
 
El Consejo de la Ciudad de Eugene aprecia su interés en estos asuntos de la agenda.  El sitio de la reunión tiene 
acceso para sillas de ruedas.  Hay accesorios disponibles para personas con afecciones del oído, o se les puede 
proveer un interprete avisando con 48 horas de anticipación.  También se provee el servicio de interpretes en 
idioma español avisando con 48 horas de anticipación.  Para reservar estos servicios llame a la recepcionista al 541-
682-5010.  Todas las reuniones del consejo estan gravados en vivo en Metro Television, canal 21 de Comcast y 
despues en la semana se pasan de nuevo.   

 
  

For more information, contact the Council Coordinator at 541-682-5010, 

or visit us online at www.eugenewww.eugenewww.eugenewww.eugene----or.gov.or.gov.or.gov.or.gov. 



 

 C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\4363.docx 

 

EEEEUGENE UGENE UGENE UGENE CCCCITY ITY ITY ITY CCCCOUNCILOUNCILOUNCILOUNCIL    

AAAAGENDA GENDA GENDA GENDA IIIITEM TEM TEM TEM SSSSUMMARYUMMARYUMMARYUMMARY 
 
  

Work Session:  Eugene Water & Electric Board Riverfront Redevelopment 
Project and Riverfront Urban Renewal District Investments 

 
Meeting Date:  May 13, 2015  Agenda Item Number:  A  
Department:  Planning & Development Staff Contacts:  Denny Braud 
                           Public Works Mark Schoening 
www.eugene-or.gov Contact Telephone Numbers: 541-682-5536; 541-682-5243 
    
 
ISSUE STATEMENT 
Working in partnership with Eugene Water & Electric Board (EWEB) and the University of 
Oregon Foundation Team, City staff has been making progress towards the redevelopment of 
the riverfront property and the creation of the regional River Districts.  At this meeting, staff 
will present the council with a list of immediate and upcoming projects. The council (or the 
council acting as the Agency Board) will be asked to take action on three items related to the 
riverfront redevelopment: the 8th Avenue crossing design, initial design work related to the 
Quiet Zone, and the River Loans program. The council will also be asked to take action related 
to the regional River Districts on the use of funds for the development of the Walnut Station 
Multi-Way Boulevard facility plan. 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
The concept for the riverfront redevelopment reflects the community’s vision, as depicted in 
the EWEB Riverfront Master Plan and codified through zoning. Additionally, the property is a 
critical piece of the community vision for the “River Districts,” a set of vibrant and connected 
urban neighborhoods planned, designed, and built to celebrate and share the beauty of the 
Willamette River Greenway while sustainably driving regional economic prosperity. This 
riverfront redevelopment has the unparalleled potential to achieve the following objectives: 
 

• Create a new downtown neighborhood; 
• Provide an inviting place along the river for the entire community; 
• Enhance connectivity along the riverfront path system;  
• Strengthen the economic identity of the region with continued investment and 

enhancements in the downtown core area; and  
• Build towards a regional River Districts concept, outlined in the Lane Livability 

Consortium.  
 

-1-

Item A.



 

 C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\4363.docx  

The council last discussed the riverfront in a work session on March 11, 2015, which followed 
a discussion of the Quiet Zone on March 9, 2015. The council also toured the site on April 27, 
2015.  
 
CAPITAL INVESTMENT PROGRAM OVERVIEW 
City staff has identified a list of investments that are needed to support the EWEB riverfront 
redevelopment project and the River District vision. The immediate projects that support the 
riverfront redevelopment are of significant importance in providing EWEB and the University 
of Oregon Foundation an understanding of the City’s potential financial commitments as they 
negotiate the land sale.  Additionally, many of the investments are necessary for the 
University of Oregon Foundation to meet the goal for ground breaking in 2016. 
 
Multiple funding sources are identified for the investments including Riverfront Urban 
Renewal District (RURD) funds, Transportation and Parks SDC funds, federal STP-U and 
TIGER grant funds, and state ConnectOregon funds. Additional sources will need to be 
identified to fully fund several of the projects. 

Immediate Capital Investments 
These items are underway or should begin within the next six months. Four of the items 
require council or Agency Board action at this time. The other immediate items are underway, 
but do not require council action this time. The council has reviewed and taken action on 
numerous plans and policy documents that pertain to the development of the EWEB site, the 
riverfront park, the riverfront bike path system, and supporting infrastructure. Attachment A 
provides a list of the relevant adopted plans.   
 
1. 8th and Hilyard Railroad Crossing 

The existing railroad crossing at 8th and Hilyard needs to be relocated to align with 8th 
Avenue to provide direct public access to the riverfront area. The first step is to design the 
crossing based on engineering and safety requirements and consistency with the EWEB 
Riverfront Master Plan. The City will need to coordinate closely with the Federal Rail 
Administration to ensure the design includes supplemental safety measures that meet 
Quiet Zone standards. 
 
The June supplemental budget will include $140,000 in Riverfront Urban Renewal District 
(RURD) funds to design the 8th Avenue crossing.  
 

2. Railroad Quiet Zone 
The Quiet Zone is a critical piece of the infrastructure improvements needed for the 
redevelopment of the EWEB property and for downtown and surrounding neighborhoods, 
particularly for future housing development. 
 
The June supplemental budget will include $100,000 in RURD funds to begin the design of 
Quiet Zone.  The total cost of the Quiet Zone is estimated at $7.4 million, but a funding plan 
has not yet been developed for the capital costs. 

 
 

-2-

Item A.



 

 C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\4363.docx 

3. River Loans Program  
The Riverfront Renewal Loan Program (River Loans) is a new revolving loan program 
designed to encourage capital investment within the Riverfront Urban Renewal District. 
The primary goal of River Loans is to provide funding assistance to projects that meet the 
goals and objectives of the Riverfront Urban Renewal District Plan, EWEB Riverfront 
Master Plan, and the Eugene Downtown Plan. The program is designed to be flexible and 
responsive to unique redevelopment opportunities, challenges, and specific individual 
project financing needs of the riverfront area. It is intended to encourage private, non-
profit, and public/private partnership development. The program is modeled after the 
Downtown Revitalization Loan Fund, which has assisted numerous property owners and 
businesses in the Downtown Urban Renewal District. The River Loans program will be 
funded through Urban Renewal District program revenue (i.e., non-tax increment dollars) 
with an initial loan pool of $1 million dollars to be appropriated in the FY16 Budget. 
 
The Riverfront Urban Renewal Plan requires the Urban Renewal Agency to adopt the loan 
program guidelines.  
 

4. Riverfront Park 
An inviting and accessible public park along the Willamette River is a critical component to 
creating a new riverfront neighborhood district. A park will serve as an anchor amenity for 
new private development and create an access point to the riverfront for the community 
as a whole. City staff has begun determining the key environmental, engineering, and 
regulatory parameters for creating a park along the river that respects the natural setting, 
creates an amenity for future private development, and draws people from the entire 
community to experience and celebrate the Willamette River at this key site.  This will be 
followed by the development of a concept design and construction cost estimate for the 
park.  
 
The park concept was included as a key element in the approved EWEB Riverfront Master 
Plan and related zoning. It was one of the most publicly supported components of the 
entire redevelopment concept.  
 
The FY 2016 – 2021 Capital Improvement Program (CIP) adopted by the City Council 
includes $3 million in Parks SDC in the first two years to fund the park improvement plan.  
Significant additional funds may be needed to develop a legacy park project. 
 

5. Willamette to Willamette Plan 
City staff is currently developing an infrastructure and public art plan connecting 
Willamette Street to the Willamette River to advance the long-held vision for connecting 
downtown to the river. The project will coordinate with future development including City 
Hall, Whole Foods, the Shedd Institute for the Performing Arts, the Farmers’ Market, Lane 
County property, and the EWEB Riverfront Master Plan (including the relocated railroad 
crossing at 8th and Hilyard, the riverfront park, and riverfront redevelopment). Staff have 
begun working to identify needed improvements along 8th and 5th Avenues to make a 
better connection to the riverfront area and to create the riverfront loop. The plan will 
include public engagement and will be developed using existing budgeted funds.   

-3-

Item A.



 

 C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\4363.docx  

 
6. Bike Share 

A public bike share system is being developed that will consist of approximately 170 
bicycles and 24 stations located near residential, shopping, employment, and transit 
centers in downtown Eugene, the riverfront site, and nearby areas including the University 
of Oregon. This bike share system will fully integrate with a four-station, 40-bike system 
that is being implemented on the UO campus. 
 
The Oregon Transportation Commission approved a Connect Oregon Grant of $909,066 for 
the City’s bike share system.  The grant requires a local match of $227,267.  
 

7. Relocation and Reconstruction of the Riverfront Shared-Use Path 
The shared-use path is a key element in the community vision in the EWEB Riverfront 
Master Plan and the River District concept. The rebuilt path will create a strong 
bike/pedestrian connection between the riverfront site and the downtown core, as well as 
provide connectivity along the entire riverfront path system. The section of the riverfront 
shared-use path along the EWEB site is currently in such poor condition that it constitutes 
a safety hazard. The repairs that are periodically required to maintain this section of path 
are not cost-effective and lead to detours for path users.  The reconstruction and 
relocation of the path will facilitate the development of the Riverfront Park and the 
riverfront site.  
 
The Metropolitan Policy Committee is scheduled to act on the City’s STP-U funding request 
of $180,000 for design of the shared-use path on May 7, 2015.  The match for the grant will 
come from Transportation Systems Development Charge funds.  Construction funding will 
be requested in the next STP-U funding allocation process later this year. 
 

8. Historic Preservation – Bow Truss Building  
The EWEB Operations Warehouse, or bow truss building, constructed in 1952, was 
originally built for storing reels of wire and other utility construction products.  The 
building also housed the EWEB main office. This building has been identified for adaptive 
reuse due to its expansive space, construction, condition, and ability to tell the story of the 
industrial past of the site.  King Estate has publicly announced its interest in the building. 
However, renovation and reuse of the building will require significant financial resources.  
The River Loans Program (see item 3 above) may provide one of the needed financing 
tools for the building renovation. 
 

9. Affordable Housing  
The University of Oregon Foundation has expressed a desire to include affordable housing 
within the redevelopment project.  Affordable housing on the riverfront site would help 
the many individuals and families in the community struggling to find housing they can 
afford. The City of Eugene works with a number of partners to create a range of stable, 
safe, and affordable housing opportunities throughout Eugene.  The City will need to 
identify partners and tools to assist with project feasibility to help the Foundation create a 
project that will be competitive for low-income housing tax credits in the 2016 application 

-4-

Item A.



 

 C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\4363.docx 

round.  Other funding sources will likely be necessary and could include CDBG, HOME, 
Low-Income Housing Rental Property Tax Exemption (LIHRPTE), and SDC waivers.     
 

10. Walnut Station Multi-Way Boulevard Facility Plan and Environmental Studies 
Converting Franklin Boulevard from its existing configuration to a multi-way boulevard is 
a core component of the vision for the Walnut Station Mixed-Use Center, creating an 
entryway to the University of Oregon, the riverfront site, and downtown. Transforming the 
street is seen as a necessary step to encourage properties along Franklin to redevelop at 
higher densities and with a mix of uses.  The multi-way boulevard design supports the 
increased redevelopment envisioned by providing a safer and more pedestrian-friendly 
environment, including curb extensions, wider sidewalks that provide areas for street 
amenities and opportunities for café seating and other outdoor activities. It provides an 
opportunity to improve a key corridor and connector between the University of Oregon 
and the riverfront site prior to the 2021 World Track and Field Championships. 
 
Funding for the Walnut Station Multi-Way Boulevard facility plan and environmental 
studies will be requested in the next STP-U funding allocation process later this year. The 
City will request $850,000 in STP-U funding with a City match of $95,000 of RURD funds.  
If the grant request is approved, matching funds will be requested on a supplemental 
budget.  
 

Upcoming Capital Investments 
These items should be well underway within the next two to five years. Specific capital 
investments may require City Council action in the future and will be presented at the 
appropriate time.  

 
1. Willamette to Willamette Plan Implementation  

The Willamette to Willamette Plan will include a number of key implementation strategies. 
The plan will specify infrastructure improvements, such as streetscape and other 
improvements for 8th Avenue and potentially 5th Avenue. The plan will also include two-
way traffic on 8th Avenue, a priority project. Funding for these improvements needs to be 
identified so that design work can coordinate with the build-out of improvements on the 
riverfront.  
 

2. Walnut Station Multi-Way Boulevard Implementation 
Upon completion of the facility and environmental documentation, the City will pursue 
funding for final design and construction through the federal TIGER grant program. TIGER 
grants focus on capital projects that generate economic development and improve access 
to reliable, safe and affordable transportation for both urban and rural areas. They also 
emphasize improved connections to employment, education, services, and other 
opportunities, workforce development, or community revitalization. The minimum grant 
amount is $10 million and requires a local match of 25 percent.  
 

3. Historic Preservation (Steam Plant)  
The Steam Plant was constructed in phases between 1931 and 1950 to house steam 
boilers and turbines. The multi-story masonry and steel-framed building supplied steam to 

-5-

Item A.



 

 C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\4363.docx  

downtown properties until it was decommissioned in 2012. EWEB has spent 
approximately $1 million in remediation and demolition of the boilers and pipes which 
contained asbestos. Even with a vacant and remediated building, renovation of this 
structure will require significant financial assistance to transform it for a new use, as 
envisioned by the public engagement process and documented in the EWEB Riverfront 
Master Plan.  There is no identified use for the facility at this time.  
 

4. Enhanced Streets, Sidewalks and Open Spaces 
The EWEB Riverfront Master Plan envisioned an enhanced pedestrian environment that 
connects sites within the riverfront area and back to downtown. The enhanced paths may 
include elements such as integrated stormwater features, lighting, sidewalk treatment, 
seating, public art, and interpretive signing. The goal is to create a high quality and unique 
pedestrian experience that ties the river to the urban landscape.   
 

5. Parking 
The east end of downtown has seen significant redevelopment in recent years, including 
the Northwest Community Credit Union, Sam Bond’s Brewing in the Foundry Building, and 
the Hub.  Activities in this area have already overtaxed available parking; development on 
the riverfront will be further hampered by the lack of parking. Providing parking is 
essential so that visitors, residents, and customers can park once, and then easily access 
the activities and the natural environment along the riverfront. In addition to a parking 
study, public/private partnership opportunities may need to be identified to address this 
critical issue, both for the riverfront as well as nearby redevelopment sites.  
 

6. Parks and Recreation System Plan  
The Parks and Open Space and Recreation Divisions have launched a planning process to 
create a renewed vision for the Eugene parks and recreation system. This planning 
process is expected to be completed in late 2016, and includes extensive community 
engagement about the future needs for parks and recreation facilities over the next 10 
years. A new list of priority projects is expected to be generated as a result of this process. 
One of the key items that will be discussed relates directly to the new riverfront park at 
the EWEB site. This idea has to do with looking at revitalizing the parks, open spaces, and 
paths along both sides of this section of the Willamette River. A new master plan to update 
Alton Baker Park; what to do about improving the access and use of the Cuthbert 
Amphitheater; how to make better connections for the river path between the 
Frohnmayer and Knickerbocker Bridges on the south bank of the river; and what potential 
park spaces might be developed on the University of Oregon property immediately east of 
the EWEB property would all be under consideration within the context of this vision. The 
new riverfront park on the EWEB property is a key starting point from which to make 
these future improvements and establish connections between the riverfront parks 
network and downtown.  
 

TRIPLE BOTTOM LINE ANALYSIS 
The Triple Bottom Line (TBL) approach is a framework for analysis and discussion that 
incorporates community values of environmental resource management, culture and social 
equity, and economics and prosperity. The TBL analysis is not specifically a decision-making 

-6-

Item A.



 

 C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\4363.docx 

framework; policy direction is still required to weigh and balance competing interests. The 
TBL approach can provide insight to assess and describe outcomes that may lack quantifiable 
market values, yet have value to the community. The analysis can help inform decisions 
regarding the use of public funds, so that public investments focus on elements that yield the 
greatest benefit to the community, where benefit is defined as both market and non-market 
values.  
 
Attachment B provides a summary table and detailed analysis of the TBL impacts for the 
different public investments. The analysis found that the redevelopment of the former 
industrial site has many positive elements and limited downside consequences. The following 
are the key findings of the TBL review: 
 

• Benefits of development without displacement. With the history of industrial uses 
on the site, new development will not push out vulnerable populations. Instead, it will 
contribute jobs and housing for a variety of income levels, including affordable housing 
for low-income households. 

• Creation of a 20-minute neighborhood. The mixed-use character of the 
development, along with the street improvements and proximity to downtown, will 
establish a model neighborhood with greater connectivity and opportunities for auto-
free travel and lifestyle. 

• Multiple economic benefits from a showcase destination development. The 
project promises a variety of economic benefits, both in the short and long term, 
including jobs, tourism, retail, and other commercial activity. These will contribute to 
the growing economic vitality of Eugene’s downtown. 

• Expand the property tax base. The private development of the site will create 
substantial new taxable value and associated tax revenue.  The added tax revenue will 
become available to local governments after the RURD is terminated. 

• Significant addition to cultural identity and place-making. The project location and 
design embraces the City’s relationship to the Willamette River and creates an inviting, 
accessible shared space that can be a source of civic pride and identity. 

• Environmental benefits of brownfield site restoration. Development of the site will 
prompt environmental remediation to address contamination from historic practices, 
preventing potential pollution and ecosystem degradation, and restoring the site to 
productive and safe use.  In addition, the development of the park will restore the 
riparian function of the riverbanks. 

 
FINANCIAL CAPACITY  
1. Financial Capacity of the RURD  
The FY16 Proposed Budget includes approximately $9.4 million in available funds that can be 
used for projects included in the RURD Plan.  The actions contained in this funding request 
total $240,000, which is well within the financial capacity of the RURD.  As mentioned earlier, 
there is also $1 million included in the FY16 Proposed Budget to start the River Loans 
program. 
 
The capacity of the RURD to fund more significant capital improvements will be based upon 
the timing and amounts of any project, as well as the remaining “maximum indebtedness” 

-7-

Item A.



 

 C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\4363.docx  

capacity of the district.  “Maximum indebtedness” is a spending cap over the life of the district 
and is set at $34.8 million for the RURD.  A portion of that spending capacity has already been 
committed, leaving approximately $25-$30 million for additional projects over the life of the 
district. 
 
2. Other Financial Resources 
Other financial resources include the following: 

• Transportation System Development Charges funds are limited to capacity-
increasing capital improvements on the arterial and collector-street and off-street 
shared-use path systems.  These funds may provide the local match to federal grant 
funds for upgrading and relocating the existing shared-use path. 

• Parks System Development Charges funds are limited to capacity-increasing park 
capital improvements.  These funds are programmed to fund the Riverfront Park. 

• Surface Transportation Program – Urban (STP-U) funds are programed by the 
Central Lane Metropolitan Planning Organization to specific projects. These funds must 
be matched with local or other non-federal funds at a minimum ratio of 10.27 percent 
of the total funding. These funds may be used to upgrade and relocate the existing 
shared-use path. 

• Transportation Investment Generating Economic Recovery (TIGER) funds are 
discretionary grants that require a 25 percent non-federal match and fund capital 
investments in surface transportation infrastructure and are awarded on a competitive 
basis nationally to projects that will have a significant impact on the nation, region, or 
metropolitan area. These funds could be used to implement the Walnut Station Multi-
Way Boulevard.  

• ConnectOregon was created in 2005 by the Oregon Legislature to invest the proceeds 
of lottery-backed bonds in grants and loans to non-highway transportation projects 
that promote economic development in Oregon.  In 2015, the City received a $909,066 
ConnectOregon grant to fund the implementation of a bike share system. 

 
 
RELATED CITY POLICIES 
Redevelopment of the EWEB Riverfront property supports many goals for Eugene and 
downtown, as listed below.  As this project moves into the implementation phase, the City’s 
primary focus throughout will be guiding redevelopment of the property aligned with the 
community’s vision as expressed in these adopted plans and policies. 
 
Eugene Downtown Plan 

• Incorporate the Willamette River as in integral element to downtown planning and 
development. 

• Collaborate with EWEB to encourage relocation of its utility facilities.  Create a “people 
place” that is active, vibrant, accessible and multi-use.   

• Facilitate dense development in the courthouse area and other sites between the core 
of downtown and the river.  

• Stimulate multi-unit housing in the downtown core and on the edges of downtown for 
a variety of income levels and ownership opportunities.  

• Downtown development shall support the urban qualities of density, vitality, livability 

-8-

Item A.



 

 C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\4363.docx 

and diversity to create a downtown, urban environment.  
• Actively pursue public/private development opportunities to achieve the vision for an 

active, vital, growing downtown. 
• Use downtown development tools and incentives to encourage development that 

provides character and density downtown. 
• Facilitate dense development in the courthouse area and other sites between the core 

of the downtown and the river.   
• Promote adjacent park and open space areas as a valuable complement to downtown’s 

urban places. Improve connections between downtown and nearby nature areas.   
 
Envision Eugene Pillars 

• Promote compact urban development and efficient transportation options.  
-  Integrate new development and redevelopment in the downtown, in key transit 

corridors and in core commercial areas. 
-  Meet the 20-year multi-family housing need within the existing Urban Growth 

Boundary.   
-  Make compact urban development easier in the downtown, on key transit 

corridors, and in core commercial areas. 
• Provide housing affordable to all income levels.   
• Provide ample economic opportunities for all community members. 
• Protect, repair, and enhance neighborhood livability.  
• Protect, restore, and enhance natural resources. 

 
Regional Prosperity Economic Development Plan  

• Strategy 5: Identify as a Place to Thrive - Priority Next Step - Urban Vitality 
-  As we foster a creative economy, dynamic urban centers are an important asset. 

Eugene, Springfield and many of the smaller communities in the region recognize 
the importance of supporting and enhancing vitality in their city centers.  Building 
downtowns as places to live, work and play will support the retention and 
expansion of the existing business community and be a significant asset to attract 
new investment. The Cities of Eugene and Springfield will continue to enhance 
their efforts to promote downtown vitality through development and 
redevelopment. 

 
Eugene Climate & Energy Action Plan 

• Increase density around the urban core and along high-capacity transit corridors 
• Continue to expand and improve Eugene’s bicycle and pedestrian infrastructure and 

connectivity to increase the percentage of trips made by bike and on foot.  
 
City Council Goal of Sustainable Development   

• Increased downtown development 
 
 

COUNCIL OPTIONS 
The council options include: 1) Approve the suggested motions; or 2) Take no action at this 
time.  

-9-

Item A.



 

 C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\4363.docx  

 
CITY MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION 
The City Manager recommends that the City Council or Agency Board approve the motions. 
 
 
SUGGESTED URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY BOARD MOTIONS 
1. Move to include the use of $140,000 of RURD funds for the design of the relocation of the 

8th Avenue crossing on the June supplemental budget. 
2. Move to include the use of $100,000 of RURD funds for design of the Quiet Zone on the 

June supplemental budget. 
3. Move to approve the River Loans program guidelines.  
 
 
SUGGESTED CITY COUNCIL MOTION 
Move to approve the submittal of an STP-U funding appropriation request of $850,000 for the 
development of the Franklin Multi-Way Boulevard facility plan and environmental studies 
with the intention to use RURD funds of $95,000 for the grant match. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
A. Summary of Adopted Plans and Council Work Sessions 
B. Triple Bottom Line Analysis 
C. River Loans Program Guidelines 
 
 
FOR MORE INFORMATION 
Staff Contact:   Denny Braud  
Telephone:   541-682-5536   
Staff E-Mail:  denny.braud@ci.eugene.or.us  
 
Staff Contact:   Mark Schoening 
Telephone:   541-682-5243   
Staff E-Mail:  mark.a.schoening@ci.eugene.or.us 

-10-

Item A.



ATTACHMENT A 

ADOPTED PLANS 

Bikeshare Feasibility Study May 2014 

The River Districts – A Regional Collaboration February 2014 

Regional Bike Parking Study July 2013 

Willamette River Bank Stability Study – Phase 2:  Priority Site Review 
and Conceptual Alternative Analysis 

June 2012 

Eugene Pedestrian and Bicycle Master Plan March 2012 

Walnut Station Specific Area Plan July 2010 

EWEB Riverfront Master Plan June 2010 

Central Area Transportation Study Update June 2004 

Eugene Downtown Plan April 2004 

Rivers to Ridges – Metropolitan Regional Parks and Opens Space 
Study 

June 2003 

Stormwater Basin Master Plan – Willamette River Basin August 2002 

Courthouse District Concept Plan July 2002 

Transplan July 2002 

Wet Weather Flow Management Plan February 2001 

Urban Sanitary Sewer Master Plan 1992 

Millrace Enhancement Feasibility Study September 1990 

Riverfront Research Park Master Plan December 1988 

Pavement Preservation Program No date provided 

 
 

 

 

 

-11-

Item A.



 



Investments in EWEB Riverfront Site: Triple Bottom Line Analysis May 2015  

ATTACHMENT B 

Investment in EWEB Riverfront Site: Triple Bottom Line Analysis 

The Triple Bottom Line (TBL) is a framework to help City Council and staff consider the social 
equity, environment health, and economic prosperity impacts associated with City decisions. Public 
investments in the EWEB riverfront area will affect the long-term outcome of the development and 
the TBL will help Council and staff understand the short-term and long-term implications of 
potential investments. 

The following TBL assessment addresses potential impacts of developing the riverfront site at two l 
levels: the full site development and specific potential public investments to support that 
development. The individual public investments create the foundation for a successful development 
on the riverfront site as envisioned in the EWEB Riverfront Master Plan.  

Key FindingKey FindingKey FindingKey Findingssss    from TBL Analysisfrom TBL Analysisfrom TBL Analysisfrom TBL Analysis    
The TBL process found that the redevelopment of the former industrial site has many positive 
elements and limited downside consequences. The following are the key findings of the TBL review: 

• Benefits of development without displacement. With the history of industrial uses on 
the site, new development will not push out vulnerable populations. Instead, it will 
contribute jobs and housing for a variety of income levels, including affordable housing for 
low-income households. 

• Creation of a 20-minute neighborhood. The mixed-use character of the development, 
along with the street improvements and proximity to downtown, will establish a model 
neighborhood with greater connectivity and opportunities for auto-free travel and lifestyle. 

• Multiple economic benefits from a showcase destination development. The project 
promises a variety of economic benefits, both in the short and long term, including jobs, 
tourism, retail, and other commercial activity. These will contribute to the growing 
economic vitality of Eugene’s downtown. 

• Expand the property tax base. The private development of the site will create substantial 
new taxable value and associated tax revenue.  The added tax revenue will become available 
to local governments after the RURD is terminated. 

• Significant addition to cultural identity and place-making. The project location and 
design embraces the City’s relationship to the Willamette River and creates an inviting, 
accessible shared space that can be a source of civic pride and identity. 

• Environmental benefits of brownfield site restoration. Development of the site will 
prompt environmental remediation to address contamination from historic practices, 
preventing potential pollution and ecosystem degradation, and restoring the site to 
productive and safe use.  In addition, the development of the park will restore the riparian 
function of the riverbanks. 

 

One question that is challenging to answer is how these multiple benefits will be distributed across 
the community. Who will fill the new jobs created? How will the increased property values that 
come with redevelopment be shared? Will the retail opportunities be available to minority-owned 

-13-

Item A.



Investments in EWEB Riverfront Site: Triple Bottom Line Analysis May 2015  

businesses? These types of questions are important to keep in mind as the project progresses but it 
is worth noting that the range of jobs and income created, as well as the inclusion of affordable 
housing in the residential component, broadens the distribution of these benefits. A city’s 
downtown is a central gathering place for that community. It is everyone’s neighborhood. The 
development of the riverfront area expands Eugene’s downtown with creates a new space with 
access to the Willamette River that is available to everyone. Its central location offers services for 
the entire community, with access to government services, educational services, legal services, 
cultural events, recreational opportunities, and entertainment. 

A summary table and detailed analysis of the TBL impacts for the different public investments 
follows. 

Public InvestmentsPublic InvestmentsPublic InvestmentsPublic Investments    
City staff in the Public Works Department and the Planning and Development Department have 
worked together to identify public investments that could be made in the riverfront site. We have 
identified public investments that will enable development of the site and enhance the site to 
increase its appeal for the proposed development and benefit the overall community. 

We have identified the following potential public investments that will create the foundation for a 
successful development of the riverfront site:  

1. Riverfront Park 
2. Quiet Zone 
3. Bike Path 
4. Bike Share 
5. Riverfront Renewal Loan Program 
6. Enhanced Streets, Sidewalks, and Open Space 
7. Preservation of Historic Structures 
8. Affordable housing 
9. Parking 
10. Willamette to Willamette 

We expect this list to shift over time, as the development takes place on the site and new 
opportunities and priorities present themselves. The list should be viewed as a work in progress, 
designed to keep City Council, City staff, the UO Foundation, and EWEB informed about the City’s 
planned and potential infrastructure investments in the riverfront site over time. 

The following table summarizes the TBL impacts for the overall development and for each specific 
potential public investment. The full TBL analysis follows the table.  

 

-14-

Item A.



In
ve
st
m
en

ts
 in
 E
W
E
B
 R
iv
er
fr
on
t S

ite
: T

rip
le
 B
ot
to
m
 L
in
e 
A
na
ly
si
s 

M
ay
 2
01

5 
 

Su
m
m
ar
y 
o
f 

Su
m
m
ar
y 
o
f 

Su
m
m
ar
y 
o
f 

Su
m
m
ar
y 
o
f 
So
ci
al
 E
q
u
it
y,
 E
n
vi
ro
n
m
en
ta
l 
H
ea
lt
h
, 
an
d
 E
co
n
o
m
ic
 P
ro
sp
er
it
y 
Im
p
ac
ts

So
ci
al
 E
q
u
it
y,
 E
n
vi
ro
n
m
en
ta
l 
H
ea
lt
h
, 
an
d
 E
co
n
o
m
ic
 P
ro
sp
er
it
y 
Im
p
ac
ts

So
ci
al
 E
q
u
it
y,
 E
n
vi
ro
n
m
en
ta
l 
H
ea
lt
h
, 
an
d
 E
co
n
o
m
ic
 P
ro
sp
er
it
y 
Im
p
ac
ts

So
ci
al
 E
q
u
it
y,
 E
n
vi
ro
n
m
en
ta
l 
H
ea
lt
h
, 
an
d
 E
co
n
o
m
ic
 P
ro
sp
er
it
y 
Im
p
ac
ts

 

  In
ve
st
m
en
t 

D
es
cr
ip
ti
o
n
 

S
o
ci
al
 E
q
u
it
y 

E
n
vi
ro
n
m
en
ta
l H
ea
lt
h
 

E
co
n
o
m
ic
 P
ro
sp
er
it
y 

O
ve
ra
ll 

de
ve
lo
pm

en
t o
f 

R
iv
er
fr
on
t S

ite
 

$2
35
 m

ill
io
n 
of
 p
riv
at
e 
in
ve
st
m
en
t i
n 

ne
w
 r
es
id
en
tia
l a
nd
 c
om

m
er
ci
al
 

st
ru
ct
ur
es
. 

+ 
Im

pr
ov
e 
co
m
m
un
ity
 a
cc
es
s 
to
 th

e 
riv
er
 

+ 
E
nh
an
ce
 c
ul
tu
re
 a
nd
 e
du
ca
tio
n 
at
 

th
e 
riv
er
 

+ 
Im

pr
ov
e 
co
nn
ec
tiv
ity
 fo

r 
al
l 

tr
an
sp
or
ta
tio
n 
m
od
es
 

+ 
E
xp
an
d 
ho
us
in
g 
an
d 
em

pl
oy
m
en
t 

op
po
rt
un
iti
es
 

+ 
C
om

pl
em

en
t d
ow

nt
ow

n 
re
vi
ta
liz
at
io
n 

—
 In
cr
ea
se
 e
ne
rg
y 
an
d 
m
at
er
ia
ls
 u
se
 

du
rin
g 
co
ns
tr
uc
tio
n 

+ 
D
ec
re
as
e 
av
er
ag
e 
m
ile
s 
dr
iv
en
, 

ca
rb
on
 e
m
is
si
on
s,
 a
nd
 o
th
er
 a
ut
o-

or
ie
nt
ed
 p
ol
lu
ta
nt
s 

+ 
R
ed
uc
e 
st
or
m
w
at
er
 r
un
of
f 

+ 
R
em

ed
ia
te
 b
ro
w
nf
ie
ld
 

co
nt
am

in
at
io
n 

+ 
C
re
at
e 
a 
co
m
pa
ct
 u
rb
an
 fo
rm

 

+ 
C
re
at
es
 2
,9
96
 d
ire
ct
 a
nd
 

se
co
nd
ar
y 
jo
bs
 a
nd
 a
ss
oc
ia
te
d 

in
co
m
e 
du
rin
g 
co
ns
tr
uc
tio
n 
pe
rio
d 

+ 
In
cr
ea
se
 p
ro
pe
rt
y 
ta
x 
re
ve
nu
e 
by
 

ab
ou
t $

3 
m
ill
io
n 
pe
r 
ye
ar
 a
t f
ul
l 

bu
ild
 o
ut
 

+ 
E
nh
an
ce
 to
ur
is
m
 a
nd
 tr
an
si
en
t 

ro
om

 ta
x 
re
ve
nu
es
 

+ 
C
re
at
e 
co
st
 e
ffi
ci
en
ci
es
 fo
r 
ur
ba
n 

se
rv
ic
es
 

1.
 R
iv
er
fr
on
t 

P
ar
k 

D
es
ig
n 
an
d 
co
ns
tr
uc
t C

ity
-o
w
ne
d 

pa
rk
 o
n 
W
ill
am

et
te
 R
iv
er
. 

+ 
E
nh
an
ce
 r
es
id
en
ts
’ r
ec
re
at
io
na
l 

op
po
rt
un
iti
es
 

+ 
Im

pr
ov
e 
ac
ce
ss
 to

 W
ill
am

et
te
 

R
iv
er
 

+ 
C
on
tr
ib
ut
e 
to
 c
om

m
un
ity
 c
oh
es
io
n 

+ 
P
os
iti
ve
 e
ffe
ct
 o
n 
he
al
th
 

—
 In

cr
ea
se
 e
ne
rg
y 
an
d 
m
at
er
ia
ls
 

us
e 
du
rin
g 
co
ns
tr
uc
tio
n 

+ 
R
ed
uc
e 
st
or
m
w
at
er
 r
un
of
f 

+ 
R
ed
uc
e 
en
er
gy
 c
on
su
m
pt
io
n 

+ 
E
nh
an
ce
 h
ab
ita
t i
n 
rip
ar
ia
n 
ar
ea
 

+ 
P
os
iti
ve
 e
ffe
ct
 o
n 
ai
r 
qu
al
ity
 

+ 
C
re
at
e 
11
 jo
bs
 a
nd
 a
ss
oc
ia
te
d 

in
co
m
e 
fo
r 
ev
er
y 
$1
 m
ill
io
n 
of
 p
ar
k 

co
ns
tr
uc
tio
n 
ex
pe
nd
itu
re
 d
ur
in
g 

co
ns
tr
uc
tio
n 
pe
rio
d 

+ 
In
cr
ea
se
 p
ro
pe
rt
y 
va
lu
es
 

+ 
E
nh
an
ce
 to
ur
is
m
 a
nd
 tr
an
si
en
t 

ro
om

 ta
x 
re
ve
nu
es
 

2.
 Q
ui
et
 Z
on
e 

E
nh
an
ce
 s
af
et
y 
at
 R
R
 c
ro
ss
in
gs
 to
 

m
ee
t f
ed
er
al
 s
ta
nd
ar
ds
 to

 e
lim

in
at
e 

tr
ai
n 
ho
rn
 n
oi
se
 (
w
hi
ch
 h
as
 a
 

m
in
im
um

 o
f 9
6 
de
ci
be
ls
).
 P
ro
je
ct
 

in
cl
ud
es
 1
0 
cr
os
si
ng
s:
 8

th
 A
ve
nu
e,
 

H
ig
h 
S
tr
ee
t, 
P
ea
rl 
S
tr
ee
t, 
an
d 
7 

ad
di
tio
na
l c
ro
ss
in
gs
 w
es
t o
f t
he
 

riv
er
fr
on
t s
ite
. 

+ 
In
cr
ea
se
 s
af
et
y 
at
 r
ai
lro
ad
 

cr
os
si
ng
s 

+ 
Im

pr
ov
e 
ac
ce
ss
 to

 r
iv
er
fr
on
t s
ite
 

+ 
D
im
in
is
h 
no
is
e 

+ 
Im

pr
ov
e 
he
al
th
 

—
 In

cr
ea
se
 e
ne
rg
y 
an
d 
m
at
er
ia
ls
 

us
e 
du
rin
g 
co
ns
tr
uc
tio
n 

+ 
C
re
at
e 
9 
jo
bs
 a
nd
 a
ss
oc
ia
te
d 

in
co
m
e 
fo
r 
ev
er
y 
$1
 m
ill
io
n 
of
 p
ar
k 

co
ns
tr
uc
tio
n 
ex
pe
nd
itu
re
 d
ur
in
g 

co
ns
tr
uc
tio
n 
pe
rio
d 

+ 
P
ro
vi
de
 e
ss
en
tia
l a
cc
es
s 
to
 

riv
er
fr
on
t s
ite
 (
8t

h  
A
ve
nu
e 
cr
os
si
ng
) 

+ 
R
ed
uc
e 
co
ns
tr
uc
tio
n 
co
st
s 
of
 

de
ve
lo
pm

en
t 

+ 
E
ffi
ci
en
t u
se
 o
f p

ub
lic
 fu
nd
s 
(8

th
 

A
ve
nu
e 
cr
os
si
ng
) 

3.
 B
ik
e 
P
at
h 

D
es
ig
n 
an
d 
im
pr
ov
e 
B
ik
e 
P
at
h 

th
ro
ug
ho
ut
 r
iv
er
fr
on
t s
ite
. 

+ 
Im

pr
ov
e 
co
nn
ec
tiv
ity
 a
nd
 a
cc
es
s 

to
 r
iv
er
fr
on
t a

nd
 d
ow

nt
ow

n 
co
re
 

+ 
In
cr
ea
se
 o
pp
or
tu
ni
tie
s 
to
 im

pr
ov
e 

he
al
th
 

—
 In
cr
ea
se
 e
ne
rg
y 
an
d 
m
at
er
ia
ls
 u
se
 

du
rin
g 
co
ns
tr
uc
tio
n 

+ 
D
ec
re
as
e 
av
er
ag
e 
m
ile
s 
dr
iv
en
, 

ca
rb
on
 e
m
is
si
on
s,
 a
nd
 o
th
er
 a
ut
o-

or
ie
nt
ed
 p
ol
lu
ta
nt
s 

+ 
C
re
at
e 
9 
jo
bs
 a
nd
 a
ss
oc
ia
te
d 

in
co
m
e 
fo
r 
ev
er
y 
$1
 m
ill
io
n 
of
 p
ar
k 

co
ns
tr
uc
tio
n 
ex
pe
nd
itu
re
 d
ur
in
g 

co
ns
tr
uc
tio
n 
pe
rio
d 

+ 
In
cr
ea
se
 e
xp
os
ur
e 
to
 r
et
ai
l 

bu
si
ne
ss
es
 

-15-

Item A.



In
ve
st
m
en

ts
 in
 E
W
E
B
 R
iv
er
fr
on
t S

ite
: T

rip
le
 B
ot
to
m
 L
in
e 
A
na
ly
si
s 

M
ay
 2
01

5 
 

  In
ve
st
m
en
t 

D
es
cr
ip
ti
o
n
 

S
o
ci
al
 E
q
u
it
y 

E
n
vi
ro
n
m
en
ta
l H
ea
lt
h
 

E
co
n
o
m
ic
 P
ro
sp
er
it
y 

4.
 B
ik
e 
S
ha
re
 

T
he
 C
ity
 o
f E

ug
en
e 
w
ill
 im

pl
em

en
t a
 

pu
bl
ic
 b
ik
e-
sh
ar
e 
sy
st
em

 c
on
si
st
in
g 

of
 a
pp
ro
xi
m
at
el
y 
28
 s
ta
tio
ns
 a
nd
 

ab
ou
t 2

10
 b
ik
es
 lo
ca
te
d 
ne
ar
 

re
si
de
nt
ia
l, 
sh
op
pi
ng
, e
m
pl
oy
m
en
t, 

an
d 
tr
an
si
t c
en
te
rs
 in
 d
ow

nt
ow

n 
E
ug
en
e,
 th
e 
U
O
 c
am

pu
s,
 th

e 
riv
er
fr
on
t s
ite
, a
nd
 th

e 
W
hi
te
ak
er
 

ne
ig
hb
or
ho
od
. 

+ 
In
cr
ea
se
 o
pp
or
tu
ni
tie
s 
to
 im

pr
ov
e 

he
al
th
 

+ 
E
xp
an
d 
an
d 
en
ha
nc
e 
ex
is
tin
g 

tr
an
si
t s
er
vi
ce
s 

+ 
D
ec
re
as
e 
av
er
ag
e 
m
ile
s 
dr
iv
en
, 

ca
rb
on
 e
m
is
si
on
s,
 a
nd
 o
th
er
 a
ut
o-

or
ie
nt
ed
 p
ol
lu
ta
nt
s 

+ 
In
cr
ea
se
 b
us
in
es
s 
ac
tiv
ity
 n
ea
r 

bi
ke
-s
ha
re
 s
ta
tio
ns
 

+ 
R
ed
uc
e 
ho
us
eh
ol
d 
ex
pe
nd
itu
re
s 

on
 tr
an
sp
or
ta
tio
n 

5.
 R
iv
er
fr
on
t 

D
is
tr
ic
t L
oa
n 

P
ro
gr
am

 

A
 lo
w
-in
te
re
st
 lo
an
 p
ro
gr
am

 a
va
ila
bl
e 

to
 a
ny
 b
us
in
es
s 
in
 th

e 
R
iv
er
fr
on
t 

U
rb
an
 R
en
ew

al
 D
is
tr
ic
t f
or
 b
ui
ld
in
g 

im
pr
ov
em

en
ts
. 

+ 
P
ro
vi
de
s 
re
so
ur
ce
s 
fo
r 
sm

al
l 

bu
si
ne
ss
es
 

+ 
S
up
po
rt
s 
hi
st
or
ic
al
 p
re
se
rv
at
io
n 

—
 In

cr
ea
se
 e
ne
rg
y 
an
d 
m
at
er
ia
ls
 

us
e 
du
rin
g 
co
ns
tr
uc
tio
n 

+ 
In
cr
ea
se
 p
ro
pe
rt
y 
ta
x 
re
ve
nu
es
 

6.
 E
nh
an
ce
d 

S
tr
ee
ts
, 

S
id
ew

al
ks
, a
nd
 

O
pe
n 
S
pa
ce
 

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts
 to
 s
tr
ee
ts
 a
bo
ve
 b
as
ic
 

st
re
et
 r
eq
ui
re
m
en
ts
. 

+ 
E
nh
an
ce
 th
e 
pu
bl
ic
 e
xp
er
ie
nc
e 

+ 
P
os
iti
ve
 e
ffe
ct
 o
n 
he
al
th
 

+ 
R
ed
uc
e 
st
or
m
w
at
er
 r
un
of
f 

+ 
R
ed
uc
e 
en
er
gy
 c
on
su
m
pt
io
n 

+ 
P
os
iti
ve
 e
ffe
ct
 o
n 
ai
r 
qu
al
ity
 

+ 
E
nh
an
ce
 fi
na
nc
ia
l v
ia
bi
lit
y 

7.
 H
is
to
ric
 

P
re
se
rv
at
io
n 

S
ei
sm

ic
 u
pg
ra
de
s 
an
d 
ot
he
r 
re
pa
irs
 

of
 S
te
am

 P
la
nt
 a
nd
/o
r W

ar
eh
ou
se
. 

+ 
E
nh
an
ce
 c
ul
tu
ra
l i
de
nt
ity
 

+ 
C
on
se
rv
e 
ex
is
tin
g 
re
so
ur
ce
s 

—
 C
os
t o
f r
eh
ab
ili
ta
tio
n 
m
ay
 e
xc
ee
d 

ec
on
om

ic
 v
al
ue
 o
f t
he
 s
tr
uc
tu
re
s 

8.
 A
ffo

rd
ab
le
 

H
ou
si
ng
 

N
ew

 h
ou
si
ng
 in
 th

e 
riv
er
fr
on
t s
is
tr
ic
t 

th
at
 is
 s
pe
ci
fic
al
ly
 ta

rg
et
ed
 to

 lo
w
 

in
co
m
e 
ho
us
eh
ol
ds
. 

+ 
In
cr
ea
se
 lo
ca
tio
n 
ch
oi
ce
s 
fo
r 
lo
w
-

in
co
m
e 
ho
us
eh
ol
ds
 

+ 
R
ed
uc
e 
de
pe
nd
en
cy
 o
n 

au
to
m
ob
ile
s 

+ 
R
ed
uc
e 
co
m
m
ut
e 
tim

es
 

+ 
P
ro
vi
de
 a
cc
es
s 
to
 g
oo
ds
 a
nd
 

se
rv
ic
es
 

+ 
Im

pr
ov
ed
 s
ta
nd
ar
d 
of
 li
vi
ng
 

po
si
tiv
el
y 
af
fe
ct
s 
he
al
th
 

—
 In
cr
ea
se
 e
ne
rg
y 
an
d 
m
at
er
ia
ls
 u
se
 

du
rin
g 
co
ns
tr
uc
tio
n 

+ 
D
ec
re
as
e 
av
er
ag
e 
m
ile
s 
dr
iv
en
, 

ca
rb
on
 e
m
is
si
on
s,
 a
nd
 o
th
er
 a
ut
o-

or
ie
nt
ed
 p
ol
lu
ta
nt
s 

+ 
C
re
at
e 
13
 jo
bs
 a
nd
 a
ss
oc
ia
te
d 

in
co
m
e 
fo
r 
ev
er
y 
$1
 m
ill
io
n 
of
 

m
ul
ti-
fa
m
ily
 c
on
st
ru
ct
io
n 

ex
pe

nd
itu
re
 d
ur
in
g 
co
ns
tr
uc
tio
n 

pe
rio
d 

+ 
In
cr
ea
se
 c
on
su
m
pt
io
n 
sp
en
di
ng
 

+ 
/ -
 V
ar
yi
ng
 im

pa
ct
 o
n 
pr
op
er
ty
 

va
lu
es
 

9.
 P
ar
ki
ng
 

C
on
st
ru
ct
io
n 
of
 p
ar
ki
ng
 s
tr
uc
tu
re
(s
).
 

+ 
Im

pr
ov
e 
ac
ce
ss
 to

 th
e 
riv
er
fr
on
t f
or
 

in
di
vi
du
al
s 
w
ith
 li
m
ite
d 
m
ob
ili
ty
 

—
 In
cr
ea
se
 e
ne
rg
y 
an
d 
m
at
er
ia
ls
 u
se
 

du
rin
g 
co
ns
tr
uc
tio
n 

+ 
/-
 V
ar
yi
ng
 im

pa
ct
 o
n 
au
to
m
ob
ile
 

us
e 

+ 
R
ed
uc
e 
dr
iv
er
s 
cr
ui
si
ng
 fo

r 
st
re
et
 

pa
rk
in
g 
sp
ac
es
, t
he
re
by
 r
ed
uc
in
g 

fo
ss
il 
fu
el
 c
on
su
m
pt
io
n 

+ 
D
ec
re
as
e 
de
m
an
d 
fo
r 
su
rf
ac
e 

pa
rk
in
g 

+ 
C
re
at
e 
11
 jo
bs
 a
nd
 a
ss
oc
ia
te
d 

in
co
m
e 
fo
r 
ev
er
y 
$1
 m
ill
io
n 
of
 

pa
rk
in
g 
st
ru
ct
ur
e 
co
ns
tr
uc
tio
n 

ex
pe

nd
itu
re
 d
ur
in
g 
co
ns
tr
uc
tio
n 

pe
rio
d 

+ 
E
nh
an
ce
 fi
na
nc
ia
l v
ia
bi
lit
y 
of
 

ov
er
al
l d
ev
el
op
m
en
t 

-16-

Item A.



In
ve
st
m
en

ts
 in
 E
W
E
B
 R
iv
er
fr
on
t S

ite
: T

rip
le
 B
ot
to
m
 L
in
e 
A
na
ly
si
s 

M
ay
 2
01

5 
 

  In
ve
st
m
en
t 

D
es
cr
ip
ti
o
n
 

S
o
ci
al
 E
q
u
it
y 

E
n
vi
ro
n
m
en
ta
l H
ea
lt
h
 

E
co
n
o
m
ic
 P
ro
sp
er
it
y 

10
. W

ill
am

et
te
 

to
 W

ill
am

et
te
 

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts
 to
 th

e 
pu
bl
ic
 r
ea
lm
 

be
tw
ee
n 
W
ill
am

et
te
 S
tr
ee
t a

nd
 th

e 
W
ill
am

et
te
 R
iv
er
. 

+ 
Im

pr
ov
e 
pe
de
st
ria
n 
ac
ce
ss
 to
 

riv
er
fr
on
t s
ite
 

+ 
Im

pr
ov
e 
co
nn
ec
tiv
ity
 fo

r 
al
l 

tr
an
sp
or
ta
tio
n 
m
od
es
 

+ 
C
om

pl
em

en
t d
ow

nt
ow

n 
re
vi
ta
liz
at
io
n 

—
 In
cr
ea
se
 e
ne
rg
y 
an
d 
m
at
er
ia
ls
 u
se
 

du
rin
g 
co
ns
tr
uc
tio
n 

+ 
D
ec
re
as
e 
av
er
ag
e 
m
ile
s 
dr
iv
en
, 

ca
rb
on
 e
m
is
si
on
s,
 a
nd
 o
th
er
 a
ut
o-

or
ie
nt
ed
 p
ol
lu
ta
nt
s 

+ 
Im

pr
ov
e 
bu
si
ne
ss
 a
cc
es
s 

+ 
E
nh
an
ce
 p
ro
pe
rt
y 
va
lu
es
 

  

-17-

Item A.



Investments in EWEB Riverfront Site: Triple Bottom Line Analysis May 2015  

The remainder of this document describes each potential investment (beginning with the overall 
development of the site), its expected cost to the City and potential funding sources, and its social, 
environmental, and economic impacts. 

Overall Development of SiOverall Development of SiOverall Development of SiOverall Development of Sitetetete    
The development of the site will create social, environmental, and economic impacts. The City’s 
investment in specific elements (such as the park and the railroad crossing) will be necessary for 
private development to occur, but substantial private investment is also necessary to create a 
riverfront development as envisioned in the EWEB Riverfront Master Plan. 

This section describes the impacts associated with the overall development of the site. It is the 
combination of private investment with multiple public investments that will create a new 
riverfront neighborhood. This section focuses on outcomes of the whole development, which will 
require both public and private investments. After this section, we describe the impacts that can be 
tied to specific public investments.  

The new development will be a ‘20-minute neighborhood’, a place where residents have easy, 
convenient access to many of the places and services they use daily including grocery stores, 
restaurants, and parks, without relying heavily on a car. As described by the City of Eugene’s Office 
of Sustainability, 20-minute neighborhoods are characterized by a vibrant mix of commercial and 
residential uses all within an easy walk. They have higher concentrations of people and are 
complete with the sidewalks, bike lanes and bus routes that support a variety of transportation 
options. They are an important strategy for reducing reliance on the automobile, lowering 
transportation costs, and reducing our community’s greenhouse gas emissions. In addition, 
walkable neighborhoods improve public health, help residents save money as they spend less on 
driving, and improve access to daily needs.  

The development also plays a significant role in place-making. As described in a Triple Bottom Line 
tool for economic development, place-making: 

…creates inviting and distinctive spaces where people want to live, work and play. Place-
making can contribute to the financial bottom line through increased property value, 
tourism receipts and firm recruitment and retention…Preserving and enhancing cultural 
and historic resources can contribute to economic vitality. In addition, community well-
being may be improved if these resources contribute to civic pride, a sense of identity and 
connection, and well-utilized public spaces1. 

Estimated Cost and FundingEstimated Cost and FundingEstimated Cost and FundingEstimated Cost and Funding    
The UO Foundation will be the primary investor in new development on the site. The Foundation’s 
development team provided rough estimates of the planned investment of residential and 
commercial development and we have used that data for our analysis. The Foundation estimates 

                                                             
1 Hammer, J., G. Pivo, I. Goldstein, and M. McCullough. The Triple Bottom Line for Economic Development: A 
Practitioner’s Guide. US Economic Development Administration. January 2015. 

-18-

Item A.



Investments in EWEB Riverfront Site: Triple Bottom Line Analysis May 2015  

that the total private investment will be about $235 million at full build out; most of the 
development will be residential (90%) and the remainder will be commercial. 

Social EquitySocial EquitySocial EquitySocial Equity    

Improve community access to the Improve community access to the Improve community access to the Improve community access to the rrrriveriveriveriver    

As described in the EWEB Riverfront Master Plan, over 20 years of planning documents and 
community efforts have identified the EWEB property as the place where the city should meet the 
river. An investment in the park, bike path, and street will create new access to the Willamette 
River in the city center, creating recreational and health benefits for the public that are both 
immediate and long lasting.  The Eugene community places significant value on the ability to access 
neighborhood parks, open space, and nearby nature to bicycle, walk, attend events, eat lunch, and 
experience the river.  A newly created riverfront park is expected to attract hundreds of visitors per 
day, providing health, well-being, and quality of life benefits for the community. We describe 
benefits specifically associated with the riverfront park in the section below. 

Enhance culture and education at the Enhance culture and education at the Enhance culture and education at the Enhance culture and education at the rrrriveriveriveriver    

The EWEB property is the only property within the Eugene Downtown Plan area that is immediately 
adjacent to the river, and can serve as the community’s living classroom for local history and rich 
natural habitat.  For over 100 years, the EWEB operations facility and the former Agripac industrial 
use have been an obstacle to the community’s access to the river from downtown.  For decades, the 
community’s vision for the riverfront focused on creating a place where residents and visitors come 
to live, work, recreate, attend cultural and educational events, and reinforce civic identity and local 
pride. Creating an accessible neighborhood along the Willamette River will enhance Eugene’s civic 
identity as a city on the river. The EWEB Riverfront Master Plan identifies the open space along the 
river as a place to teach and inspire inquiry into the community’s history, in a variety of ways and at 
a variety of scales.  

Improve connectivImprove connectivImprove connectivImprove connectivityityityity    for all transportation modesfor all transportation modesfor all transportation modesfor all transportation modes    

The transportation improvements include an improved bike path with good connectivity to the 
downtown core, a street-grade railroad crossing on 8th Avenue, and a road connecting 8th Avenue to 
5th Avenue. The new roads and paths will enable access to the new development, the new park, and 
the Willamette River. Constructing the new transportation routes are consistent with concurrent 
planning efforts, including the Climate & Energy Action Plan and the Willamette Open Space 
Visioning Project.  

Expand housing and employment opportunitiesExpand housing and employment opportunitiesExpand housing and employment opportunitiesExpand housing and employment opportunities    

The urban development in the riverfront site will create opportunities for households to live within 
walking distance to the Willamette River, the downtown core, and the University. The UO 
Foundation has indicated it intends to build affordable and market-rate housing, so households 
across the income spectrum will having housing choices in the area. The site will offer proximity to 
employment centers, retail goods and services, views of the river, and recreational activities that 
are not currently available in Eugene.  

-19-

Item A.



Investments in EWEB Riverfront Site: Triple Bottom Line Analysis

Complement Complement Complement Complement ddddowntown owntown owntown owntown rrrrevitalizationevitalizationevitalizationevitalization

Redevelopment of the area will complement downtown, thereby enhancing the continued 
investment and activity in downto
urban design connections to the rest of downtown will realize the 
downtown as an active, strong urban core connected to the river

Environmental HealthEnvironmental HealthEnvironmental HealthEnvironmental Health    

Increase eIncrease eIncrease eIncrease energy and materials use during constructionnergy and materials use during constructionnergy and materials use during constructionnergy and materials use during construction

The construction of the infrastructure and new buildings will consume natural resources, including 
gravel, concrete, wood, steel, and other materials. The construction equipment will generate 
greenhouse gasses and other emissions. 
generate similar negative impacts, but because this area will be a 20
development makes it likely that reside
over the long term. 

Decrease average miles drivenDecrease average miles drivenDecrease average miles drivenDecrease average miles driven, carbon emissions, and other auto, carbon emissions, and other auto, carbon emissions, and other auto, carbon emissions, and other auto

A high priority action item within the 
around the urban core and along high
increasing the density of development around the urban center is an effective strategy for reducing 
fossil fuel use and greenhouse gas emissions.
development will reduce average energy consumption over the long term.

National data show that individuals
individuals in other parts of a community. The chart below shows that individuals drive
miles per day than individuals in suburban parts of a community, and 10.5 fewer miles per day than 
individuals who live in rural areas.

Figure Figure Figure Figure 1111. Average Daily Miles Driver per Driver. Average Daily Miles Driver per Driver. Average Daily Miles Driver per Driver. Average Daily Miles Driver per Driver

National Household Travel Survey, 2009, as reported in 
from Oak Ridge National Laboratory. July 2014. 

Dense, mixed-use development near the downtown and UO will increase housing opportunities 
within close proximity to employment and retail services and cul

Investments in EWEB Riverfront Site: Triple Bottom Line Analysis May 2015 

evitalizationevitalizationevitalizationevitalization    

area will complement downtown, thereby enhancing the continued 
investment and activity in downtown. The enhanced amenities along the riverfront and improved 
urban design connections to the rest of downtown will realize the Eugene Downtown Plan
downtown as an active, strong urban core connected to the river.  

nergy and materials use during constructionnergy and materials use during constructionnergy and materials use during constructionnergy and materials use during construction    periodperiodperiodperiod    

The construction of the infrastructure and new buildings will consume natural resources, including 
gravel, concrete, wood, steel, and other materials. The construction equipment will generate 

sses and other emissions. It is important to note that any new development will 
generate similar negative impacts, but because this area will be a 20-minute neighborhood, this 

residents and businesses in the area will consume fewer resources 

, carbon emissions, and other auto, carbon emissions, and other auto, carbon emissions, and other auto, carbon emissions, and other auto----oriented pollutantsoriented pollutantsoriented pollutantsoriented pollutants    

A high priority action item within the Eugene Climate and Energy Action Plan is to increase density 
long high-capacity transit corridors. The Action Plan indicates that 

increasing the density of development around the urban center is an effective strategy for reducing 
fossil fuel use and greenhouse gas emissions. As a 20-minute neighborhood, the riverfro
development will reduce average energy consumption over the long term. 

National data show that individuals living in city centers drive, on average, fewer miles than 
individuals in other parts of a community. The chart below shows that individuals drive
miles per day than individuals in suburban parts of a community, and 10.5 fewer miles per day than 
individuals who live in rural areas. 

. Average Daily Miles Driver per Driver. Average Daily Miles Driver per Driver. Average Daily Miles Driver per Driver. Average Daily Miles Driver per Driver    

 
2009, as reported in Transportation Energy Data Book,  

 

use development near the downtown and UO will increase housing opportunities 
within close proximity to employment and retail services and cultural venues, decreasing average 

 

area will complement downtown, thereby enhancing the continued 
wn. The enhanced amenities along the riverfront and improved 

Downtown Plan vision for 

The construction of the infrastructure and new buildings will consume natural resources, including 
gravel, concrete, wood, steel, and other materials. The construction equipment will generate 

It is important to note that any new development will 
minute neighborhood, this 

consume fewer resources 

is to increase density 
capacity transit corridors. The Action Plan indicates that 

increasing the density of development around the urban center is an effective strategy for reducing 
rhood, the riverfront 

living in city centers drive, on average, fewer miles than 
individuals in other parts of a community. The chart below shows that individuals drive 2.5 fewer 
miles per day than individuals in suburban parts of a community, and 10.5 fewer miles per day than 

use development near the downtown and UO will increase housing opportunities 
tural venues, decreasing average 

-20-

Item A.



Investments in EWEB Riverfront Site: Triple Bottom Line Analysis May 2015  

miles driven per Eugene resident. This will result in lower per capita carbon emissions and other 
automobile emissions (including carbon monoxide, nitrogen oxides, sulfur oxide, and particulate 
matter).  

Reduce stormwaterReduce stormwaterReduce stormwaterReduce stormwater    runoffrunoffrunoffrunoff    

In accordance with the EWEB Riverfront Master Plan, the existing riparian river edge will be 
enhanced, providing significant habitat and ecological connectivity for a healthier environmental 
balance. To manage stormwater, the new park and landscaped areas will reduce the negative 
impacts of urban runoff typically associated with large volumes of untreated runoff and the release 
of harmful chemicals into waterways. To manage stormwater, the Master Plan allows the 
integration of bioswales, rain gardens, open water channels, green roofs, pervious paving, retention 
basin, rainwater harvesting, and water-wise planting.  

The Master Plan shows almost all of the existing EWEB site (93%) is covered with impervious 
surfaces, creating 16.4 million gallons of stormwater runoff annually. Implementing the Master Plan 
will sustainably manage the property’s storm water runoff through address collection, retention 
and cleansing. The result will reduce runoff by an estimated 19% to 65% by conserving water for 
human use, ground water recharge, filtration and habitat creation. These stormwater 
enhancements will reduce the amount of impervious surface on the property and represent 
potential storm water management cost savings for the City.  

Remediate brownfield contaminatiRemediate brownfield contaminatiRemediate brownfield contaminatiRemediate brownfield contaminationononon    

The site is a brownfield. It is currently undergoing analysis not to determine the level of 
contamination associated with past activity. In order to building housing, the area will need to be 
remediated. 

Create a compact urban formCreate a compact urban formCreate a compact urban formCreate a compact urban form    

Development on the riverfront site will follow the Master Plan and will be a dense, urban 
development. The compact urban form on the site will reduce pressure to build housing and 
commercial space on land elsewhere in the region. The compact urban form on the riverfront site 
will help preserve existing open space and agricultural lands.  

Economic ProsperityEconomic ProsperityEconomic ProsperityEconomic Prosperity    

Create jobs and income during construction periodCreate jobs and income during construction periodCreate jobs and income during construction periodCreate jobs and income during construction period    

Constructing the residential and commercial structures will generate short-term jobs and 
associated income. Using an input-output model to estimate the number of jobs and income impacts 
associated with construction expenditures, City staff found that the residential and commercial 
construction will directly generate 1,260 jobs with an average annual wage of $60,900. The 
construction activity will have ripple effects throughout the Lane County economy, generating an 

-21-

Item A.



Investments in EWEB Riverfront Site: Triple Bottom Line Analysis May 2015  

additional 1,735 jobs with an average annual wage of $35,600. In total, the private investment in 
residential and commercial structures will generate 2,996 jobs.2 

IncreaseIncreaseIncreaseIncrease    property tax rproperty tax rproperty tax rproperty tax revenueevenueevenueevenue    

In the short term, the property will change from public (EWEB) to private (UO Foundation) 
ownership, so it will become taxable. The taxable value of the property is not known at this time, 
because the property includes EWEB’s headquarters building and associated surface parking area. 
That portion of the property will remain in EWEB ownership and will not become taxable. City staff 
reviewed the assessed value of the parcels that comprise the property, and estimated that the land 
that will become taxable has an assessed value of about $10.5 million. The permanent tax rate for 
the property is 15.9484 per $1,000 of assessed value (excluding bond levies). Bringing the property 
into private ownership will generate roughly $168,000 annually. 

Redevelopment of area will increase assessed value and property tax revenue. To estimate the 
expected increase in property tax revenue, we converted the UO Foundation’s estimate of its 
investment into assessed value and multiplied the assessed value by the permanent tax rate of 
15.9484 per $1,000 of assessed value (excluding bond levies). The Foundation has estimated it will 
have invested $235 million in new construction at full build out. We estimate this is roughly equal 
to $186 million in new assessed value. 3 At full build out, the new development will generate about 
$2.97 million annually in property tax revenue.4 The density and quality of the new built 
environment will determine the assessed value and the actual tax revenue. 

Enhance Enhance Enhance Enhance ttttourismourismourismourism    and and and and ttttransient ransient ransient ransient rrrroom oom oom oom ttttaxaxaxax    revenuesrevenuesrevenuesrevenues    

The development on the riverfront site will contribute to the community’s overall identity as a 
visitor destination in a positive way. While we do not expect the development will be a tourist 
attraction, it will enhance the appeal of the Eugene area for tourism. The site’s proximity to major 
athletic venues, including Autzen Stadium and Hayward Field, make it an obvious destination for 
visitors attending athletic events. The improved access for all transportation modes will ensure that 
the park and potential restaurants and retail will attract the visitors before and after the athletic 
events, enhancing the visitor experience and generate increased business sales. To the degree that 
the Eugene area increases its appeal as a visitor destination, hotel revenue will increase, which will 
in turn yield increased revenues from the Transient Room Tax (4.5% of all overnight stays). 

CCCCreate create create create cost efficiencies for urban servicesost efficiencies for urban servicesost efficiencies for urban servicesost efficiencies for urban services    

Intensively developing land inside the Urban Growth Boundary will be more cost effective by 
reducing the need for constructing new infrastructure, and creating service cost efficiencies.  For 
example, national studies show, on average, a 10% savings in services like police and fire for cities 
that develop their land more densely.   

                                                             
2 City staff used the IMPLAN model throughout this analysis to conduct the input-output analysis to estimate 
jobs and wages. The jobs are short-term jobs specifically associated with construction expenditures.  
3 To estimate assessed value, we applied the Changed Property Ratio for Residential (.8070) and Commercial 
(.6576) for Tax Year 2014-15, as identified by the Lane County Assessor.  
4 The estimates of property tax revenue are based on rough estimates of private investment and current 
Changed Property Ratios. The estimate assumes the property will not experience compression loss.  

-22-

Item A.



Investments in EWEB Riverfront Site: Triple Bottom Line Analysis May 2015  

1. 1. 1. 1. Riverfront ParkRiverfront ParkRiverfront ParkRiverfront Park    
The City of Eugene and EWEB signed a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) in February 2014 
that documented the City’s and EWEB’s aligned interests in establishing a public park that enhances 
public access to the riverfront. The MOU commits the City to funding at least $3 million of 
improvements at the approximately three-acre park. EWEB has committing to funding at least 
$500,000 for the maintenance of the park property, where it can elect to pay the amount over 10 
years, at $50,000 per year. 

Estimated Cost and FundingEstimated Cost and FundingEstimated Cost and FundingEstimated Cost and Funding    
The cost of construction will depend on the design of the park. Initial estimates range between $3.0 
and $5.0 million. Potential funding sources include Riverfront Urban Renewal and the Parks SDC. 

Social Social Social Social EquityEquityEquityEquity    

EEEEnhancnhancnhancnhanceeee    residents’ recreational opportunitiesresidents’ recreational opportunitiesresidents’ recreational opportunitiesresidents’ recreational opportunities    

The riverfront park will provide a direct benefit to the community’s residents, as it will create a 
public space to enjoy the Willamette River within the urban core. Economists have developed 
methods to quantify the economic value of the direct use of public space. In the City of Eugene, 
Earth Economics recently calculated that Eugene’s parks and natural areas provide $21 million in 
recreational benefits each year.5  

In Seattle, the Trust for Public Land conducted a survey to estimate the community’s ‘willingness to 
pay’ for the recreation experience. That is, how much would the residents pay for similar 
experiences in commercial venues in the absence of public parks. The so-called ‘direct use value’ 
represents the amount of money residents save by not having to pay market rates to enjoy the 
parks. That study found that Seattle residents value general park use (such as playgrounds, trails, 
dog walking, and picnicking) at $1.95 per visit and they value special uses (such as fishing, 
kayaking, gardening, festivals, concerts, and attractions) at $6.77 per visit. 6 These data show that 
residents place economic value on parks and the activities that occur within them and that 
specialized parks have particularly high value. The presence of a new park in the riverfront site will 
create new value for Eugene’s residents: it will be a new venue general park use and a new 
specialized riverfront facility. 

The park will be an opportunity to promote the cultural heritage of the whole site. As a public place, 
it will be an opportune location to include interpretive information about the history of the site and 
the environmental importance of the riparian area.  

ImproveImproveImproveImprove    access to Willamette Riveraccess to Willamette Riveraccess to Willamette Riveraccess to Willamette River    

The Willamette River is a hugely important amenity in the community and the park will create a 
new setting for the community to view and access it. Improved access to the river was one of the 

                                                             
5 Earth Economics. Nature’s Value: An Economic View of Eugene’s Parks, Natural Areas, and Urban Forest. For 
the City of Eugene, Parks and Open Space Division. 2015. 
6 Trust for Public Land. The Economic Benefits of Seattle’s Park and Recreation System. March 2011. 

-23-

Item A.



Investments in EWEB Riverfront Site: Triple Bottom Line Analysis May 2015  

community’s priorities identified in the Eugene Riverfront Master Plan process. The new road and 
rebuilt bike path will provide the entire community good access to the park and its riverbank.  

Contribute to cContribute to cContribute to cContribute to community cohesionommunity cohesionommunity cohesionommunity cohesion    

Social gathering spaces, such as parks, schools, and churches, contribute to community cohesion. 
The institutions and places that make up the network of human relationships can make a 
neighborhood stronger, safer, and more successful. Parks offer opportunities for all ages and 
income levels in a community to communicate, interact, and learn.7 The riverfront park’s central 
location and proximity to the downtown core will make it a public place where the whole 
community has an opportunity to interact. 

Positive Positive Positive Positive eeeeffect ffect ffect ffect onononon    hhhhealthealthealthealth    

Greenspace positively affects emotional and physical well-being. There is research that measures 
the correlation between the risk of health problems to living near green space, and it has shown 
that living close to green space lowers the risk of heart disease, diabetes, chronic neck and back 
pain, asthma, migraines, depression and anxiety.8 Parks provide opportunities for people to engage 
in physical activity, which has been shown to lower claims against medical insurance and health 
care costs.9  

Environmental HealthEnvironmental HealthEnvironmental HealthEnvironmental Health    

Increase energy and materials use durIncrease energy and materials use durIncrease energy and materials use durIncrease energy and materials use during construction perioding construction perioding construction perioding construction period    

The construction of the park infrastructure will consume natural resources, including gravel, 
concrete, and other materials. The construction equipment will generate greenhouse gasses and 
other emissions while it operates.  

Reduce sReduce sReduce sReduce stormwater runofftormwater runofftormwater runofftormwater runoff    

Pervious surfaces and trees in parks can help infiltrate stormwater, thereby reducing stormwater 
management costs. This keeps it from entering the municipal stormwater system, which can reduce 
capital investments in stormwater infrastructure and operation and maintenance costs for the city. 
A 2007 study in Portland found that an average tree in an urban park in Portland processes 226 
gallons of stormwater annually, providing the city $6 in avoided stormwater management costs 
each year.10 It is important to note that, in its current condition, the property is dominated by 
impervious surfaces and has no trees. 

                                                             
7 Trust for Public Land. The Economic Benefits of Seattle’s Park and Recreation System. March 2011. 
8 Maas, J., R.A. Verheij, P.P. Groenewegen, et al. “Green Space, Urbanity, and Health: How Strong is the 
Relation?” Journal of Epidemiology and Community Health 60 (2006): 587-592. 
9 Gies, E. The Health Benefits of Parks. The Trust for Public Land. 2006. 
10 Portland Parks and Recreation. Portland’s Urban Forest Canopy: Assessment and Public Tree Evaluation. 
October. 2007. 

-24-

Item A.



Investments in EWEB Riverfront Site: Triple Bottom Line Analysis May 2015  

Reduce Reduce Reduce Reduce eeeenergy nergy nergy nergy cccconsumptiononsumptiononsumptiononsumption    

Trees influence the demand for energy at a local level, providing nearby structures shade in the 
summer and reducing the urban heat island effect.11 This effect can reduce energy demand, which 
in turn lowers utility costs, improves air quality, and contributes fewer carbon emissions to the 
atmosphere.12 A 2007 report in Portland found that an average street tree in Portland reduces the 
demand for electricity and natural gas, providing property owners about $3 in energy savings each 
year.13 While the average park tree may not affect the energy demand for structures adjacent to a 
park, those that are positioned similar to street trees may provide similar benefits. 

EnhanceEnhanceEnhanceEnhance    habitat in riparian areahabitat in riparian areahabitat in riparian areahabitat in riparian area    

The park will be developed along the edge of the Willamette River and it will be designed to 
improve the natural function of the riparian edge. Riparian areas support a wide variety of plants 
and wildlife, and the planned improvements will increase the health of the area.  

Positive ePositive ePositive ePositive effect ffect ffect ffect on air qualityon air qualityon air qualityon air quality    

The trees and other vegetation in the park will positively contribute to air quality in the region. 
Trees, in particular, capture gaseous air pollution and particulate matter. For example, a 2007 study 
of the value of parks in Portland found that trees in parks throughout Portland remove on average 
462,662 pounds of air pollutants annually, providing benefits of more than $500,000 per year in 
reduced healthcare costs.14 

Economic ProsperityEconomic ProsperityEconomic ProsperityEconomic Prosperity    

Create jobs and income during construction periodCreate jobs and income during construction periodCreate jobs and income during construction periodCreate jobs and income during construction period    

Constructing the park will generate short-term jobs and associated income. Using an input-output 
model to estimate the number of jobs and income impacts associated with construction 
expenditures, City staff found that for every $1 million in parks construction activity generates 
about 6 jobs with an average annual wage of $60,200. The construction activity will have ripple 
effects throughout the Lane County economy, generating an additional 5 jobs with an average 
annual wage of $39,600. In total, every $1 million in parks construction will generate 11 jobs in 
Lane County.  

Increase pIncrease pIncrease pIncrease property roperty roperty roperty vvvvaluesaluesaluesalues    

A well-designed park creates a desirable space, and some households are willing to pay a premium 
to live near that park. An extensive literature review of the impact parks have on property values 

                                                             
11 Earth Economics. Nature’s Value: An Economic View of Eugene’s Parks, Natural Areas, and Urban Forest. For 
the City of Eugene, Parks and Open Space Division. 
12 Simpson, J.R. “Improved Estimates of Tree-Shade Effects on Residential Energy Use.” Energy and Buildings 
34 (2002): 1067-1076. 
13 Portland Parks and Recreation. Portland’s Urban Forest Canopy: Assessment and Public Tree Evaluation. 
October. 2007. 
14 Portland Parks and Recreation. Portland’s Urban Forest Canopy: Assessment and Public Tree Evaluation. 
October. 2007. 

-25-

Item A.



Investments in EWEB Riverfront Site: Triple Bottom Line Analysis May 2015  

concluded that most studies conducted over the past four decades found that parks increase the 
value of property near those parks.15  

Studies that focused on parks in city centers found that parks have a greater positive impact on 
nearby properties than parks in more suburban landscapes. A study in the Minneapolis-St. Paul 
metropolitan area found that the benefit of being close to a park is higher for residences closer to 
the central business district.16  One study showed that residents were willing to pay a premium of 
15% for homes or apartments nearby a neighborhood park, and an additional 2% if the home also 
had a view of the park.17 

These results indicate that a public park in the riverfront site will enhance property values. 
Developing the park before private development begins will create higher assessed values for the 
structures than if they were built before the park. This will increase property tax revenue to  the 
City. 

Enhance tourism and transient room tax revenuesEnhance tourism and transient room tax revenuesEnhance tourism and transient room tax revenuesEnhance tourism and transient room tax revenues    

The development on the riverfront site will contribute to the community’s overall identity as a 
visitor destination in a positive way. While we do not expect the park will be a tourist attraction, it 
will enhance the appeal of our area for tourism. The park’s proximity to major athletic venues, 
including Autzen Stadium and Hayward Field make it an obvious destination for visitors attending 
athletic events. The improved access for all transportation modes will ensure that the park will 
attract the visitors before and after the athletic events, enhancing the visitor experience. To the 
degree that the Eugene area increases its appeal as a visitor destination, hotel revenue will increase, 
which will in turn yield increased revenues from the Transient Room Tax. 

2. 2. 2. 2. Quiet ZoneQuiet ZoneQuiet ZoneQuiet Zone    
The purpose of the Quiet Zone (QZ) is to eliminate the routine sounding of train horns at 10 
downtown railroad crossings to increase neighborhood livability and downtown redevelopment 
potential, including at the riverfront site. In the absence of a QZ, the Federal Railroad 
Administration (FRA) has the following requirements: 

• Train horns must be sound 15 to seconds prior to and until a train reaches a crossing.  
• The horn should not be sounded greater than a quarter-mile in advance of a grade crossing. 
• The minimum sound level of the horn is 96 decibels (dBA), 100 feet in front of the train in 

its direction of travel. 
• The maximum sound level is 110 dBA. 

For context, audible communication usually ceases when background noise exceeds 90 dBA.  

                                                             
15 Crompton, J.L. 2001. “The Impact of Parks on Property Values: A Review of the Empirical Evidence.” Journal 
of Leisure Research 33(1): 1-31. 
16 Anderson, S.T. and S.E. West. 2006. “Open Space, Residential Property Values, and Spatial Context.” Regional 
Science and Urban Economics 36(2006): 773-789. 
17 Jim, C.Y. and W.Y. Chen. 2010. “External Effects of Neighborhood Parks and Landscape Elements on High-
Rise Residential Value.” Land Use Policy 27 (2010): 662-670. 

-26-

Item A.



Investments in EWEB Riverfront Site: Triple Bottom Line Analysis May 2015  

The Public Works Department has identified 10 railroad crossings that need to be altered in some 
way to meet the FRA’s QZ requirements before the FRA will allow a QZ in the area. 

• 8th Avenue Crossing. The road crossing at 8th Avenue will require re-location so that the 
existing 8th Avenue to the west of the riverfront site aligns with a new road connecting the 
site to the rest of the City’s street system. The reconstruction of the crossing will be 
designed so it meets the FRA’s safety standards to become a QZ.   

• High Street Crossing. High Street is a major collector street at the railroad crossing. Public 
Works has determined that a quad gate is best safety measure. 

• Pearl Street Crossing. Pearl Street is a major collector street at the railroad crossing. 
Public Works has determined that a quad gate is best safety measure. 

• Remaining 7 RR Crossings. The safety measures at the remaining crossings include a mix 
of closures and supplemental safety measures.  

Estimated Cost and FundingEstimated Cost and FundingEstimated Cost and FundingEstimated Cost and Funding    
Public Works has estimated the cost of implementing the safety measures at the 10 crossings will 
be $7.4 million: 

• 8th Avenue Crossing. The design is expected to cost $140,000 and construction will cost 
$2.26 million.  

• High Street Crossing. Design and construction is expected to cost $1.0 million.  
• Pearl Street Crossing. Design and construction is expected to cost $1.0 million. 
• Remaining 7 RR Crossings. Design and construction is expected to cost $3.0 million. 

Potential funding sources include Riverfront Urban Renewal (which can be applied to the 8th 
Avenue, High Street, and Pearl Street crossings) and the General Fund. 

Social EquitySocial EquitySocial EquitySocial Equity    

Increase safetyIncrease safetyIncrease safetyIncrease safety    at railroad crossingsat railroad crossingsat railroad crossingsat railroad crossings    

To establish a QZ, railroad crossings must have supplemental safety measures (SSMs). The SSMs 
include closing streets, constructing quad gates, and installing other apparatus to warn people of 
approaching trains and/or keep them off the tracks. The improved safety measures at the crossings 
will make them safer, reducing the risk of fatal accidents with trains.  

Improve accessImprove accessImprove accessImprove access    to riverfront siteto riverfront siteto riverfront siteto riverfront site    

Re-locating the 8th Avenue crossing so that the riverfront site is connected to the existing street 
system will greatly improve access to the Willamette River and the proposed public park. The 8th 
Avenue crossing is one part of an expanded road system, and it will create new connection to the 
River in the urban core. All members of the community will experience improved access to the 
whole site, the new public park, and the river.  

Diminish nDiminish nDiminish nDiminish noiseoiseoiseoise    

Implementing a QZ will reduce noise levels throughout the community.  The FRA has modeled how 
train horn sound dissipates from its source. The model shows that speech interference can begin to 

-27-

Item A.



Investments in EWEB Riverfront Site: Triple Bottom Line Analysis May 2015  

occur approximately 7,000 feet (1.3 miles) from the track when the train horn is sounding. People, 
outside and closer than 1,500 feet from the track, may have to shout to be heard.18  

Improve hImprove hImprove hImprove healthealthealthealth    

Reducing the noise level will positively impact individuals who work or live within the impacted 
area. Some effects identified by researches include decreased performance on cognitive tasks, 
hearing loss, speech interference, and sleep disturbance. Research has also shown that negative 
cardiovascular effects are associated with long-term exposure to daily equivalent sound levels 
greater than 65 dBA and transportation noise is believed to accelerate and intensify the 
development of latent mental disorders.19 

Environmental HealthEnvironmental HealthEnvironmental HealthEnvironmental Health    

Increased energy and materials use during construction periodIncreased energy and materials use during construction periodIncreased energy and materials use during construction periodIncreased energy and materials use during construction period    

The construction of the infrastructure will consume natural resources, including concrete, steel, and 
other materials. The construction equipment will generate greenhouse gasses and other emissions 
while it operates.  

Economic ProsperityEconomic ProsperityEconomic ProsperityEconomic Prosperity    

Create jobs and income during construction periodCreate jobs and income during construction periodCreate jobs and income during construction periodCreate jobs and income during construction period    

Constructing the crossing will generate short-term jobs and associated income. Using an input-
output model to estimate the number of jobs and income impacts associated with construction 
expenditures, City staff found that for every $1 million in streets construction activity generates 
about 4 jobs with an average annual wage of $60,700. The construction activity will have ripple 
effects throughout the Lane County economy, generating an additional 5 jobs with an average 
annual wage of $42,200. In total, every $1 million in streets construction will generate 9 jobs in 
Lane County. 

Provide eProvide eProvide eProvide essential ssential ssential ssential aaaaccessccessccessccess    to riverfront siteto riverfront siteto riverfront siteto riverfront site    

Re-locating the 8th Avenue crossing so that the riverfront site is connected to the existing street 
system is essential to the success of the development project. Without access, the site cannot 
become an integrated part of the city and its urban core and development of the full site cannot 
occur. 

Reduce construction cReduce construction cReduce construction cReduce construction costsostsostsosts    of developmentof developmentof developmentof development    

In the absence of a QZ, there is strong evidence that development will not occur on the riverfront 
site. For example, HUD is may not allow the use of its funds for affordable housing. As part of the 
environmental review required by HUD to use CDBG funds, the City has to identify areas of 
‘problem’ noise. Anything over 65 dBA is considered a problem and must be mitigated. For sound 

                                                             
18 Redden, John W.P., P.E. “Is Train Horn Noise a Problem in Your Town” APWA Reporter. September 2005. 
19 Lee, Cynthia S.Y. and Gregg G. Fleming. General Health Effects of Transportation Noise. US Department of 
Transportation, Research and Special Programs Administration, John A. Volpe National Transportation 
Systems Center. June 2002.  

-28-

Item A.



Investments in EWEB Riverfront Site: Triple Bottom Line Analysis May 2015  

levels exceeding 75 dBA, HUD encourages the developer to seek a different location. Sound 
Mitigation efforts include triple-glazed windows and thicker walls. These mitigation efforts create 
higher construction costs, and the costs can increase so much that rents cannot cover them. 
Affordable housing will not be financially feasible on this site. 

Mitigation costs will be an issue for other development types, including market-rate housing and 
commercial structures. To mitigate the high level of sound, the construction costs will increase.  It is 
unlikely that rents in the Eugene market will be able to be high enough so that the rent covers the 
higher construction costs. The increased costs of noise mitigation will make development 
financially infeasible. The lack of high-decibel train horns will eliminate need for highly sound-
resistant windows and walls, thereby lowering constructions costs. 

Efficient Efficient Efficient Efficient uuuuse of se of se of se of ppppublic ublic ublic ublic ffffundsundsundsunds    

Public Works has recommended that the supplemental safety measures that meet QZ requirement 
occur in tandem with the re-alignment of 8th Avenue. By coordinating the two different 
improvements, total infrastructure costs are lower than if the City separated the construction 
efforts. 

3. 3. 3. 3. Bike PathBike PathBike PathBike Path    
The Ruth Bascom Bike Path provides bicycle and pedestrian access along the Willamette River. The 
path exists at this time, but will be rebuilt in coordination with the riverfront Park and the 8th 
Avenue railroad crossing. The rebuilt path will create a strong bike/pedestrian connection between 
the riverfront site and the downtown core. 

Estimated Cost and FundingEstimated Cost and FundingEstimated Cost and FundingEstimated Cost and Funding    
Public Works has estimated that designing the path will cost $180,000 and the cost of constructing 
the path will be $750,000. The Metropolitan Policy Committee held a public hearing on March 24, 
2015 on the City’s request for $180,000 to fund design. 

Potential funding sources include Federal STP-U and the City of Eugene’s Transportation SDC. 

Social EquitySocial EquitySocial EquitySocial Equity    

ImproveImproveImproveImprove    connectivityconnectivityconnectivityconnectivity    and access to and access to and access to and access to rrrriverfront and downtown coreiverfront and downtown coreiverfront and downtown coreiverfront and downtown core    

The bike path will improve connectivity between the existing bike path system and the new 
housing and commercial development at the riverfront site and the downtown core. The improved 
connectivity will lower the time required to reach the different locations on bike or foot. The 
improvement will enhance the experience of pedestrians and bicyclists and reduce their travel 
time. This will increase the likelihood that individuals will choose to make trips on foot or bicycle, 
instead of using a car. 

-29-

Item A.



Investments in EWEB Riverfront Site: Triple Bottom Line Analysis May 2015  

Increase opIncrease opIncrease opIncrease opportunities to improve healthportunities to improve healthportunities to improve healthportunities to improve health    

An improved bike path connecting the riverfront site to other parts of the community will increase 
the opportunity for residents to use the bike path and increase their physical activity. Please see the 
discussion under the Bike Share program for a description of health impacts. 

Environmental HealthEnvironmental HealthEnvironmental HealthEnvironmental Health    

Increase energy and materials use during construction periodIncrease energy and materials use during construction periodIncrease energy and materials use during construction periodIncrease energy and materials use during construction period    

The construction of the bike path will consume natural resources, including gravel and other 
materials. The construction equipment will generate greenhouse gasses and other emissions.  

Decrease average miles drivenDecrease average miles drivenDecrease average miles drivenDecrease average miles driven, carbon emissions, and other auto, carbon emissions, and other auto, carbon emissions, and other auto, carbon emissions, and other auto----oriented pollutantsoriented pollutantsoriented pollutantsoriented pollutants    

The bike path will improve connectivity and will increase the likely that individuals choose to make 
trips on foot or bicycle, instead of using a car, thereby reducing the number of miles driven by 
Eugene residents. This will result in lower per capita carbon emissions and other automobile 
emissions (including carbon monoxide, nitrogen oxides, sulfur oxide, and particulate matter). 

Economic ProsperityEconomic ProsperityEconomic ProsperityEconomic Prosperity    

Create jobs and income during construction periodCreate jobs and income during construction periodCreate jobs and income during construction periodCreate jobs and income during construction period    

Constructing the bike path will generate short-term jobs and associated income. Using an input-
output model to estimate the number of jobs and income impacts associated with construction 
expenditures, City staff found that for every $1 million in streets construction activity generates 
about 4 jobs with an average annual wage of $60,700. The construction activity will have ripple 
effects throughout the Lane County economy, generating an additional 5 jobs with an average 
annual wage of $42,200. In total, every $1 million in streets construction will generate 9 jobs in 
Lane County. 

Increase exposure to retail businessesIncrease exposure to retail businessesIncrease exposure to retail businessesIncrease exposure to retail businesses    

The bike path will directly pass near commercial activity in the riverfront site. In particular, 
restaurants stand to take advantage of pedestrians and bicyclists traveling along the path and 
choosing to stop at the retail facilities. The existing bike path covers many miles, but very few retail 
services are directly available on the path. The riverfront site has the potential to be a destination 
for weekend and evening bicyclists, looking to combine a recreational ride with a meal along the 
River. A recent study conducted for the City of Eugene reviewed the potential economic impacts of 
proposed street-design change to South Willamette, making it more accessible to bicycles and 
pedestrians.20 The study reported that bike and walk trips are associated with more frequent 
business patronage, but with smaller per-trip expenditures. A survey in the Portland metropolitan 
area found that cyclists spent more than drivers at restaurants, drinking establishments, and 

                                                             
20 ECONorthwest. “South Willamette Street Redesign: Economic Literature Review” memorandum for the City 
of Eugene, February 28, 2014. 

-30-

Item A.



Investments in EWEB Riverfront Site: Triple Bottom Line Analysis May 2015  

convenience stores, but motorists spent more than cyclists at supermarkets.21 These data indicate 
that retail goods and services in the riverfront site will benefit from the proximity of the bike path.  

4. 4. 4. 4. Bike ShareBike ShareBike ShareBike Share    
Bike share is an innovative transportation program that allows people to check out a bicycle for 
short urban trips. System subscribers have access to public bicycles through self-service kiosk 
locations throughout the community. The system is accessed through low-cost subscriptions 
ranging from one-day access to annual membership. It is ideal for short distance, point-to-point 
trips. It is designed to be financially accessible to users of all economic strata. 

The Oregon Transportation Commission (Connect Oregon) approved a $900,000 grant to develop a 
bike-share system to serve central Eugene. The grant will likely fund 24 stations and about 170 
bikes. The initial launch locations correspond to locations where people are likely to use bikes 
including downtown Eugene, the UO campus, the riverfront site, and portions of the Whiteaker 
neighborhood.  

Estimated Cost and FundingEstimated Cost and FundingEstimated Cost and FundingEstimated Cost and Funding    
It will cost $1.14 million to establish the program. Partner agencies are currently discussing 
operational funding. The Connect Oregon grant will fund $909,000 of the start-up cost, and the City 
is currently working to identify a funding source for the remainder. 

Social EquitySocial EquitySocial EquitySocial Equity    

IncreaseIncreaseIncreaseIncrease    opportunities to improve healthopportunities to improve healthopportunities to improve healthopportunities to improve health    

A bike-share program connecting the riverfront site to other parts of the community will increase 
the opportunity for residents to increase their physical activity. Bike sharing in other communities 
has been able to increase the transportation-mode share of bicycles. By decreasing the use of autos 
and increasing the use of bicycles, the program will have positive impacts on community health. 

Physical inactivity is a well-documented risk factor for many of the most common health problems 
facing Americans, including obesity, heart disease, stroke, some cancers, diabetes and depression. 
In a report that examined bicycle programs on federal lands, the Federal Highway Administration 
reported that it is estimated that 67% of U.S. adults age 20 years and over are overweight or obese 
and bicycling can be a good way to engage in regular physical activity.22 

                                                             
21 Clifton, Kelly at al. “Consumer Behavior and Travel Mode Choices” Oregon Transportation Research and 
Education Consortium. 2013. As cited in ECONorthwest. “South Willamette Street Redesign: Economic 
Literature Review” memorandum for the City of Eugene, February 28, 2014. 
22 Gleason, Rebecca and Laurie Miskimins. Exploring Bicycle Options for Federal Lands: Bike Sharing, Rentals 
and Employee Fleets. Federal Highway Administration, Western Federal Lands Highway Division, Western 
Transportation Institute. FHWA-WFL/TD-12-001. January 2012. 

-31-

Item A.



Investments in EWEB Riverfront Site: Triple Bottom Line Analysis May 2015  

The City of Eugene completed a Feasibility Study for a Bike Share program in 2014.23 That study 
found that bike share’s ability to reduce some of the common barriers to regular bicycle use, (i.e., 
allowing new users to try bicycling without needing to own or store a bicycle) as well as the design 
of the bicycles and the visibility of the stations has a significant impact in attracting new riders. In 
Minneapolis for example, 33% of new members surveyed in 2010 by Nice Ride Minnesota had 
ridden less than once per month before joining. 

Expand and enhance existing transit servicesExpand and enhance existing transit servicesExpand and enhance existing transit servicesExpand and enhance existing transit services    

Bike share creates additional mobility in a community by adding transportation options. Bike share 
trips tend to be short–between one to two miles in length and about 20 minutes in duration. As a 
result, they provide an option for trips too far to walk and trips too short to wait for transit; a 
perfect first-mile / last-mile solution to access public transit. Many bike share users combine 
membership in a bike share system with transit, car-share, walking, and other transportation 
options to reduce their dependency on automobile travel. In some places, this has resulted in a 
fundamental shift in trip-making and household vehicle ownership.24 

Environmental HealthEnvironmental HealthEnvironmental HealthEnvironmental Health    

Decrease average miles drivenDecrease average miles drivenDecrease average miles drivenDecrease average miles driven, carbon emissions, and other auto, carbon emissions, and other auto, carbon emissions, and other auto, carbon emissions, and other auto----oriented pollutantsoriented pollutantsoriented pollutantsoriented pollutants    

As part of its Feasibility Study for a Bike Share program, the City of Eugene found evidence that 
bike-share programs can reduce carbon emissions because bike sharing has been able to increase 
the transportation-mode share of bicycles. In communities where bike share is an active 
transportation option, surveys have shown that approximately 20% to 40% of annual member 
bike-share trips replace what would have been an automobile trip. For example, the City of Denver 
calculated that its program helped avoid the emission of about 730,000 pounds of CO2 in one year. 

Economic ProsperityEconomic ProsperityEconomic ProsperityEconomic Prosperity    

Increase business activity near bikeIncrease business activity near bikeIncrease business activity near bikeIncrease business activity near bike----share stationsshare stationsshare stationsshare stations    

As part of its Feasibility Study for a Bike Share program, the City of Eugene found evidence that 
bike-share programs can increase economic activity. The bike-share program in Miami, Florida 
found that the bike-share users were more likely to patronize a business with a bike share station 
close by. By locating bike-share stations near commercial activity, the program can increase 
patronage and sales.  

ReduceReduceReduceReduce    hhhhouseholdouseholdouseholdousehold    expendituresexpendituresexpendituresexpenditures    onononon    transportationtransportationtransportationtransportation    

Participating individuals and households may experience reduced expenditures on transportation 
and health care, which combined make up over 22% of annual average household expenditure in 
the United States. Compared to the cost of operating an automobile, bike share membership is 
relatively inexpensive with most systems costing between $50 and $100 per year. In comparison, 

                                                             
23 Toole Design Group. Eugene Bike Share Feasibility Study. Prepared for Lane Transit District and City of 
Eugene. June 2014. 
24 Toole Design Group. Eugene Bike Share Feasibility Study. Prepared for Lane Transit District and City of 
Eugene. June 2014. 

-32-

Item A.



Investments in EWEB Riverfront Site: Triple Bottom Line Analysis May 2015  

the median cost of annual car ownership is approximately $9,100. A study of a bike-share program 
in Washington DC found that 87% of its annual members reduced weekly travel expenditures.  

5. 5. 5. 5. Loan ProgramLoan ProgramLoan ProgramLoan Program    
The Riverfront Renewal Loan Program will be a revolving loan program designed to encourage 
capital investment within the Riverfront Urban Renewal District. The program is modeled on the 
existing Downtown Revitalization Loan Fund in the Downtown Urban Renewal District. The loan 
program will be a flexible financing program designed to encourage investments within the 
Riverfront Urban Renewal District that contribute to the economic vibrancy and density goals for 
District. It is also designed to be responsive to unique redevelopment opportunities, redevelopment 
challenges, and individual project financing needs.  

The loan program will be available to property owners and tenants. Generally, the terms of the loan 
are favorable, with a flexible repayment schedule. It can be applied to physical improvements 
within the District, including façade improvements, historic preservation, and tenant 
improvements.  

Estimated Cost and FundingEstimated Cost and FundingEstimated Cost and FundingEstimated Cost and Funding    
The Riverfront Urban Renewal Agency has established $1.0 million in Fiscal Year 2016 for the 
revolving loan program’s initial capital infusion. The Riverfront Renewal Loan Program will be 
managed along with existing loan programs. The increased administrative costs will be 
incremental, and funded with existing Riverfront Urban Renewal District funds.  

Social EquitySocial EquitySocial EquitySocial Equity    

Provides resources for small businessesProvides resources for small businessesProvides resources for small businessesProvides resources for small businesses    

The loan program will provide gap financing to business and property owners. Borrowers face gaps 
in financing for a variety of reasons, including a lack of credit or business history (typical of 
startups), lack of collateral, and tight lending requirements. 

Supports historical preservationSupports historical preservationSupports historical preservationSupports historical preservation    

The loan program will be applicable to the rehabilitation of the Steam Plant and the Bow Truss 
buildings.  

Environmental HealthEnvironmental HealthEnvironmental HealthEnvironmental Health    

Increase energy and materials use during construction periodIncrease energy and materials use during construction periodIncrease energy and materials use during construction periodIncrease energy and materials use during construction period    

The construction financed by the loan program will consume natural resources, including concrete, 
wood, steel, and other materials and the construction equipment will generate greenhouse gasses 
and other emissions.  

-33-

Item A.



Investments in EWEB Riverfront Site: Triple Bottom Line Analysis May 2015  

Economic ProsperityEconomic ProsperityEconomic ProsperityEconomic Prosperity    

Increase Increase Increase Increase property property property property ttttax ax ax ax rrrrevenuesevenuesevenuesevenues    

The loan program provides financing for physical improvements, which will increase the value of 
the improvement property. The property tax revenue generated by the properties will increase if 
the physical improvements cause the property to experience an increase in assessed (or taxable) 
value.  

Since 2004, the Downtown Revitalization Loan Fund has loaned $5.0 million to businesses and 
property owners, which leveraged an additional $20.5 million in additional funds for the 
improvements. The value of the property in the Downtown Urban Renewal District has increased as 
a result of those investments. For example, a rehabilitation of one older building that relied on the 
Downtown Revitalization Loan Fund increased its assessed (taxable) value from $1.4 million to $3.4 
million.25 

6. 6. 6. 6. Enhanced Enhanced Enhanced Enhanced Streets, Sidewalks, and OpenStreets, Sidewalks, and OpenStreets, Sidewalks, and OpenStreets, Sidewalks, and Open    SpaceSpaceSpaceSpace    
The EWEB Riverfront Master Plan envisioned an enhanced pedestrian environment that connects 
sites within the riverfront area and back to downtown. The Planning and Development and Public 
Works Departments are working to identify how to enhance that infrastructure so that the overall 
development offers a high quality urban experience. 

At this time, City staff and the development team are working to identify specific enhancements 
that could be included in the public environment. The enhancements may include rounded curbs, 
treatments to the street surface, enhanced cross walks, wide sidewalks, additional landscaping, 
quality lighting, street furniture, public art, and a water feature.  

Estimated Cost and FundingEstimated Cost and FundingEstimated Cost and FundingEstimated Cost and Funding    
We have not identified expected costs of the enhanced streets, sidewalks, and open space. Potential 
funding sources include Riverfront Urban Renewal. 

Social EquitySocial EquitySocial EquitySocial Equity    

Enhance the public experienceEnhance the public experienceEnhance the public experienceEnhance the public experience    

The enhancements to basic transportation infrastructure and small-area open spaces will make the 
area more visually appealing and make it a desirable location. Because the sidewalks, roads, and 
surrounding landscaping are in the open, all members of the community will enjoy the higher 
quality infrastructure. In addition, the wider sidewalks will make it easier to navigate the area for 
individuals with impaired mobility. 

                                                             
25 Based on assessed values reported by Lane County Assessment and Taxation.  

-34-

Item A.



Investments in EWEB Riverfront Site: Triple Bottom Line Analysis May 2015  

Positive ePositive ePositive ePositive effect ffect ffect ffect on hon hon hon healthealthealthealth    

The enhancements are expected to include small greenspaces with natural landscaping. Greenspace 
positively affects emotional and physical well-being. There is research that measures the 
correlation between the risk of health problems to living near green space, and it has shown that 
living close to green space lowers the risk of heart disease, diabetes, chronic neck and back pain, 
asthma, migraines, depression and anxiety.26 

Environmental HealthEnvironmental HealthEnvironmental HealthEnvironmental Health    

Reduce stormwater runoffReduce stormwater runoffReduce stormwater runoffReduce stormwater runoff    

The landscaping throughout the riverfront site will be designed to reduce stormwater runoff and 
filter runoff through bioswales. These stormwater enhancements will reduce the amount of 
impervious surface on the property and represent potential storm water management cost savings 
for the City. The existing EWEB site has a total of 16.4 million gallons of stormwater runoff 
annually, and the greenspace in combination with the park will reduce runoff by an estimated 19% 
to 65%.  

ReduceReduceReduceReduce    eeeenergy nergy nergy nergy cccconsumptiononsumptiononsumptiononsumption    

Trees influence the demand for energy at a local level, providing nearby structures shade in the 
summer and a barrier to wind in the winter. Both effects can reduce energy demand, which in turn 
lowers utility costs, improves air quality, and contributes fewer carbon emissions to the 
atmosphere. The effectiveness of a tree to reduce energy consumption depends on its proximity 
and position relative to a structure. Trees nearby structures on south-facing exposures typically 
provide greater levels of benefits than trees more distant from structures, or on north-facing 
exposures.27 A 2007 report in Portland found that an average street tree in Portland reduces the 
demand for electricity and natural gas, providing property owners about $3 in energy savings each 
year.28  

Positive ePositive ePositive ePositive effect ffect ffect ffect on air qualityon air qualityon air qualityon air quality    

The trees and other vegetation in the landscaped areas will positively contribute to air quality in 
the region. Trees, in particular, capture gaseous air pollution and particulate matter. For example, a 
2007 study of the value of parks in Portland found that trees in parks throughout Portland remove 
on average 462,662 pounds of air pollutants annually, providing benefits of more than $500,000 
per year in reduced healthcare costs.29 

                                                             
26 Maas, J., R.A. Verheij, P.P. Groenewegen, et al. “Green Space, Urbanity, and Health: How Strong is the 
Relation?” Journal of Epidemiology and Community Health 60 (2006): 587-592. 
27 Simpson, J.R. “Improved Estimates of Tree-Shade Effects on Residential Energy Use.” Energy and Buildings 
34 (2002): 1067-1076. 
28 Portland Parks and Recreation. 2007. Portland’s Urban Forest Canopy: Assessment and Public Tree 
Evaluation. October.  
29 Portland Parks and Recreation. 2007. Portland’s Urban Forest Canopy: Assessment and Public Tree 
Evaluation. October.  

-35-

Item A.



Investments in EWEB Riverfront Site: Triple Bottom Line Analysis May 2015  

Economic ProsperityEconomic ProsperityEconomic ProsperityEconomic Prosperity    

Enhance Enhance Enhance Enhance ffffinancial inancial inancial inancial vvvviabilityiabilityiabilityiability    

The enhanced public infrastructure will create a sense of place that makes the riverfront site a 
desirable location. The more desirable the site becomes, the more likely that the development will 
be financially successful and achieve full buildout. 

7. 7. 7. 7. Preservation of Preservation of Preservation of Preservation of Historic SHistoric SHistoric SHistoric Structurestructurestructurestructures    
The riverfront site includes two older buildings: the bow-truss warehouse and the steam plant. The 
City of Eugene (and the Urban Renewal Agency) could support the preservation of the historic 
buildings by contributing funds or extending financing.  

Estimated Cost and FundingEstimated Cost and FundingEstimated Cost and FundingEstimated Cost and Funding    
At this time, the cost to rehabilitate the structures is not known. Potential funding sources include 
Riverfront Urban Renewal and loans from the proposed Loan Program. 

Social EquitySocial EquitySocial EquitySocial Equity    

EnhanceEnhanceEnhanceEnhance    cultural identitycultural identitycultural identitycultural identity    

Adaptive reuse of the historic steam plant and bow-truss building preserve an important part of 
Eugene’s past. Built structures are a tangible representation of history in a place. By preserving 
historic structures, we are able to share the spaces in which earlier generations lived and worked. 
Older structures are part of a community’s history and preserving them enhances the City’s cultural 
identity. 

Environmental HealthEnvironmental HealthEnvironmental HealthEnvironmental Health    

Conserve existing resourcesConserve existing resourcesConserve existing resourcesConserve existing resources    

Restoration and redevelopment may consume less energy than demolition and new construction, 
and preservation continues to use the value of past energy investment. Demolition and new 
construction not only consume present-day energy, but negates and wastes the past energy 
investment made in a building.  

Economic ProsperityEconomic ProsperityEconomic ProsperityEconomic Prosperity    

Cost of rehabilitation may exceed economic value of the Cost of rehabilitation may exceed economic value of the Cost of rehabilitation may exceed economic value of the Cost of rehabilitation may exceed economic value of the structuresstructuresstructuresstructures    

The full cost of rehabilitating the two older structures in the riverfront site is not known. It is 
possible, however, that the cost of rehabilitation will exceed the economic value of the structures. 
The true value of rehabilitation is how the cultural value of the older structures enhance the overall 
site and help to make the place a unique part of the community.  

-36-

Item A.



Investments in EWEB Riverfront Site: Triple Bottom Line Analysis May 2015  

8. 8. 8. 8. Affordable Affordable Affordable Affordable HHHHousingousingousingousing    
The UO Foundation development team has indicated it intends to build affordable housing. The City 
of Eugene supports affordable housing with a wide variety of tools that can be used at the riverfront 
site. In Eugene, many individuals and families struggle to find housing they can afford. 
Approximately 60% of Eugene households pay more than 30% of their income on housing.30 The 
City of Eugene works to create a range of stable, safe, and affordable housing opportunities for area 
residents. Eugene programs provide financial and regulatory incentives for the development of 
permanent, transitional and emergency housing developed by partner organizations. 

Estimated Cost and FundingEstimated Cost and FundingEstimated Cost and FundingEstimated Cost and Funding    
We have not identified expected costs for affordable housing. Potential funding sources include: 

• HOME funds 
• Federal Low Income Housing Tax Credits 
• State of Oregon Tax Credits 
• CDBG 
• SDC Waivers 
• Low Income Rental Housing Property Tax Exemption (LIRHPTE) 

Social EquitySocial EquitySocial EquitySocial Equity    

Increase location choices for lowIncrease location choices for lowIncrease location choices for lowIncrease location choices for low----income householdsincome householdsincome householdsincome households    

Current residents of affordable housing in the community have indicated that they have diverse 
preferences about housing locations.31 Affordable housing in the riverfront site will create 
opportunities for low-income households to live within walking distance to the Willamette River, 
the downtown core, LCC, and the University. The site will offer proximity to employment centers, 
retail goods and services, views of the River, and recreational activities that are not currently 
available in Eugene.  

Reduce dependency on automobilesReduce dependency on automobilesReduce dependency on automobilesReduce dependency on automobiles    

Housing in the riverfront site will provide households the opportunity to live close to two major 
employment centers and a range of goods, services, educational, recreational, and cultural 
opportunities. Households living in existing affordable housing developments in the downtown 
core—the Aurora and West Town on 8th—rely on automobiles much less than households living in 
other parts of the community. Two-thirds of commuters living in downtown affordable housing 
projects travel by bus, bike or walk, a significantly higher portion than 20% of all commuters in 
Eugene.32 Proximity to major employment centers and transit hubs is particularly valuable to low 
                                                             
30 U.S. Census Bureau. American Community Survey, 2007-2011.  
31 St. Vincent de Paul Society of Lane County, Inc., Housing and Community Services Agency of Lane County, 
and Metropolitan Affordable Housing Corporation. Assessment of Equity and Opportunity for Affordable 
Housing Residents. For Livability Lane. January 2014.  
32 City of Eugene, Planning and Development Department. Sustainability and Affordable Housing. June 2007. 
To show the different impacts, we used previously existing affordable developments in the City of Eugene. 
The two developments that most closely resemble the expected development in the riverfront site are the 

-37-

Item A.



Investments in EWEB Riverfront Site: Triple Bottom Line Analysis May 2015  

income households. If they can get to work (and other activities) without a car, they may choose to 
not own a car, eliminating the cost of car ownership. 

ReduceReduceReduceReduce    commute timescommute timescommute timescommute times    

Housing in the urban core reduces average commute times for its residents. Across Eugene, 20% of 
commuters have a commute time of less than 10 minutes, but 25% of commuters in existing 
downtown affordable projects have a commute time of less than 10 minutes.33 

Provide Provide Provide Provide access to goods and servicesaccess to goods and servicesaccess to goods and servicesaccess to goods and services    

Many forms of federal and state funding for affordable housing require access to key facilities, such 
as a grocery store. New affordable housing on the riverfront site will have access to the farmers 
market and existing and planned new grocery stores. In addition, the new development is close to 
LCC’s downtown campus, recreation possibilities at the new riverfront park, and good access to the 
bike path. A 2014 study initiated by the Lane Livability Consortium assessed the issues of access, 
equity, and opportunity of affordable housing residents. The study found that many affordable 
housing residents experience a lack of access to nutritious food and safe places to exercise.34 New 
affordable housing in the riverfront site will provide increased opportunity to for its residents to 
address those issues.  

Improved standard of living positively affects healthImproved standard of living positively affects healthImproved standard of living positively affects healthImproved standard of living positively affects health    

Quality affordable housing creates positive health outcomes for many reasons. Low quality housing 
has problems which negatively affect health, such as lead paint, mold and mildew, cockroach 
infestations, and other factors. In addition, poor quality housing (and uncertainty regarding housing 
options) can impact mental health conditions. High housing costs can lead to budget trade-offs that 
shortchange health care.35 Affordable housing also helps low-income individuals escape domestic 
violence.36 

Environmental HealthEnvironmental HealthEnvironmental HealthEnvironmental Health    

IncreaseIncreaseIncreaseIncrease    energy and materials use during construction periodenergy and materials use during construction periodenergy and materials use during construction periodenergy and materials use during construction period    

The construction of new buildings will consume natural resources, such as wood, steel, and other 
materials. The construction equipment will generate greenhouse gasses and other emissions.  

                                                                                                                                                                                                    
Aurora building (at 11th Avenue and Oak) and West Town on 8th (on 8th Avenue between Charnelton and 
Lincoln). The Aurora building has the highest density, at 245 units per acre and West Town has 107 units per 
acre. To show the impacts, we average the numbers that describe these two buildings. 
33 City of Eugene, Planning and Development Department. Sustainability and Affordable Housing. June 2007. 
34 St. Vincent de Paul Society of Lane County, Inc., Housing and Community Services Agency of Lane County, 
and Metropolitan Affordable Housing Corporation. Assessment of Equity and Opportunity for Affordable 
Housing Residents. For Livability Lane. January 2014. 
35 Mueller, E.J., and J.R. Tighe.. “Making the Case for Affordable Housing: Connecting Housing with Health and 
Education Outcomes.” Journal of Planning Literature 21 (371). 2007. 
36 Martin, E.J. and N.S. Stern. “Domestic Violence and Public and Subsidized Housing: Addressing the Needs of 
Battered Tenants through Local Housing Policy.” Journal of Poverty Law and Policy. January-February 2005. 

-38-

Item A.



Investments in EWEB Riverfront Site: Triple Bottom Line Analysis May 2015  

Decrease average miles drivenDecrease average miles drivenDecrease average miles drivenDecrease average miles driven, carbon emissions, and other auto, carbon emissions, and other auto, carbon emissions, and other auto, carbon emissions, and other auto----oriented pollutantsoriented pollutantsoriented pollutantsoriented pollutants    

As described in the section above describing the impacts of the Overall Development of the Site, 
dense, mixed-use development near the downtown and UO will increase housing opportunities 
within close proximity to employment and retail services, decreasing average miles driven per 
Eugene resident, and associated automobile emissions and carbon footprint.  

Economic ProsperityEconomic ProsperityEconomic ProsperityEconomic Prosperity    

Create jobs and incomeCreate jobs and incomeCreate jobs and incomeCreate jobs and income    during during during during construction periodconstruction periodconstruction periodconstruction period    

Constructing new affordable housing will generate short-term jobs and associated income. Using an 
input-output model to estimate the number of jobs and income impacts associated with 
construction expenditures, City staff found that for every $1 million in multi-family residential 
construction activity generates about 5 jobs with an average annual wage of $61,200. The 
construction activity will have ripple effects throughout the Lane County economy, generating an 
additional 8 jobs with an average annual wage of $45,600. In total, every $1 million in multi-family 
residential construction will generate 13 jobs in Lane County. 

IncreaseIncreaseIncreaseIncrease    consumption spendingconsumption spendingconsumption spendingconsumption spending    

Reducing housing costs for low-income households directly increases consumption spending for 
those households. The household income is so low that they typically do not direct the funds into 
savings; the savings from reduced housing costs are immediately spent on other basic items.  

VaryingVaryingVaryingVarying    impact on pimpact on pimpact on pimpact on property vroperty vroperty vroperty valuesaluesaluesalues    

Academic research has measured the impact new affordable housing developments have on values 
of surrounding property, but the research has found that impacts differ across programs and 
circumstances. A review of previous studies found that affordable housing can have a negative 
effect on nearby property values, but design and management of the affordable housing can limit 
that impact.37 The empirical evidence indicates that five key factors influence the effect affordable 
housing has on nearby property values.38 

• The physical appearance of subsidized housing can affect the appeal of a community. 
Unattractive or unkempt buildings may harm a community, while attractive and well-
maintained buildings may enhance a community. 

• The development of subsidized housing may signal to developers an area is viable and 
attract additional investment.  

• New housing will lead to increased population. An increase in population can make local 
streets safer and promote commercial activity. 

• Affordable housing may lead to a more stable population, since residents of subsidized 
housing tend to live in units for longer periods of time. 

                                                             
37 Nguyen, M.T. “Does Affordable Housing Detrimentally Affect Property Values? A Review of the Literature.” 
Journal of Planning Literature 20 (15). 2005. 
38 Schwartz, Ellen, Voicu, and Schill. Cited by Ellen, I.G. “Spillovers and Subsidized Housing: The Impact of 
Subsidized Rental Housing on Neighborhoods.” Joint Center for Housing Studies, Harvard University. RR07-3. 
March. 2007. 

-39-

Item A.



Investments in EWEB Riverfront Site: Triple Bottom Line Analysis May 2015  

• Subsidized housing often replaces abandoned buildings or vacant lots. This can make 
neighborhoods safer and more attractive. On the other hand, subsidized housing could 
replace a desirable use, such as a park or open space. 

This research indicates that by carefully selecting the locating and incorporating good project 
design, subsidized housing can have a positive impact on nearby property values. The existing 
affordable projects in downtown Eugene have enhanced the overall viability of development in 
downtown. The projects are visually appealing and have brought residents to the area. If the 
affordable housing development in the riverfront site is similar in quality to the recent downtown 
projects, it should positively impact nearby property values.  

9. 9. 9. 9. ParkingParkingParkingParking    
The riverfront site has no public parking facilities at this time The City of Eugene (and the Urban 
Renewal Agency) with a private partners could fund the construction of a parking structure that 
supplied parking for public, commercial, and residential uses in the riverfront site.  

Estimated Cost and FundingEstimated Cost and FundingEstimated Cost and FundingEstimated Cost and Funding    
At this time, the cost to construct a parking structure is not known.  Potential funding sources 
include Riverfront Urban Renewal. 

Social EquitySocial EquitySocial EquitySocial Equity    

ImproveImproveImproveImprove    access to the access to the access to the access to the rrrriveriveriveriverfront for individuals with limited mobilityfront for individuals with limited mobilityfront for individuals with limited mobilityfront for individuals with limited mobility    

The riverfront site will have strong bicycle and pedestrian access, but not all members of the 
community have the physical capacity to reach the area without an automobile. Providing adequate 
parking will ensure that residents with limited mobility will be able to access the new park and new 
commercial activity on the riverfront.  

Environmental HealthEnvironmental HealthEnvironmental HealthEnvironmental Health    

IncreaseIncreaseIncreaseIncrease    energy and materiaenergy and materiaenergy and materiaenergy and materials use during construction periodls use during construction periodls use during construction periodls use during construction period    

The construction of new buildings will consume natural resources, such as wood, steel, and other 
materials. The construction equipment will generate greenhouse gasses and other emissions.  

Varying impact on automobile useVarying impact on automobile useVarying impact on automobile useVarying impact on automobile use    

Providing parking for the development may be viewed as increasing dependency on automobile 
transport. Negative environmental impacts may be mitigated by pursuing “Green Garage 
Certification,” a rating system that defines and recognizes sustainable practices in parking 
structure, design, programming, technology, and management. The City of Eugene’s Parking 
Services staff work with the Green Parking Council to promote a holistic approach to managing the 
City’s parking infrastructure. The parking structure can be designed and managed to enhance 
access to mass transit, provide access to the bike share program, and direct new visitors to nearby 
amenities.  

-40-

Item A.



Investments in EWEB Riverfront Site: Triple Bottom Line Analysis May 2015  

Reduce drivers cruising for street parking spacesReduce drivers cruising for street parking spacesReduce drivers cruising for street parking spacesReduce drivers cruising for street parking spaces    

A central and well-identified parking location reduces the number of people cruising for parking 
spaces. This has an equity benefit of reducing traffic and a significant environmental benefit. 
Research has shown that, on average, 30% of cars in a business district are cruising for parking.39  
There are environmental benefits of reduced fossil fuel consumption and improved air quality to be 
gained by reducing parking space cruising. 

Decrease demand for surface parkingDecrease demand for surface parkingDecrease demand for surface parkingDecrease demand for surface parking    

A multi-level parking structure provides greater parking capacity per acre than surface parking. 
Surface parking is much less costly to provide, on a per space basis. A multi-level structure 
decreases the amount of impervious and its associated heat island effect.  

Economic ProsperityEconomic ProsperityEconomic ProsperityEconomic Prosperity    

Create jobs and income during construction periodCreate jobs and income during construction periodCreate jobs and income during construction periodCreate jobs and income during construction period    

Constructing a new parking structure will generate short-term jobs and associated income. Using 
an input-output model to estimate the number of jobs and income impacts associated with 
construction expenditures, City staff found that for every $1 million in parking-structure 
construction activity generates about 6 jobs with an average annual wage of $60,200. The 
construction activity will have ripple effects throughout the Lane County economy, generating an 
additional 5 jobs with an average annual wage of $39,600. In total, every $1 million in parking 
structure construction will generate 11 jobs in Lane County.  

Enhance Enhance Enhance Enhance ffffinancial inancial inancial inancial vvvviabilityiabilityiabilityiability    of overall developmentof overall developmentof overall developmentof overall development    

Although the development on the riverfront site will create a neighborhood that offers nearby 
employment and services, providing parking for commercial activity will be necessary for the 
development’s financial success. If the new development has inadequate parking supply, the new 
area may be unable to attract office and retail tenants. Researchers have identified how parking 
affects demand for different uses.40 

• If there are not enough parking spaces or if drivers perceive that there are not enough 
parking spaces, they may abandon their trip and choose to not visit the new park or 
patronize new retail activity. 

• If there is not enough parking available drivers may choose to travel to a different 
destination, where there is sufficient parking. This is particularly true for retail activity. 

• Some studies have shown that restricting the availability of parking may not result in a 
decrease in economic activity or vitality, provided that there are attractive alternative 
modes of transportation, such as public transit, bicycling, or walking. This requires that an 

                                                             
39 Shoup, Donald. “Cruising for Parking” in Access. No. 30, pp. 16-22. Spring 2007.  
40 Yoram Shiftan , Daniel Shefer, and Gali Avraham. The Impact of Auto Restraint Policies on the Location of 
Businesses in City Centers. Annual meeting of the Transportation Research Board, 2003.; and  
Yaron Hollander, Joseph N. Prashker, and David Mahalel. Determining the desired amount of parking using 
Game Theory. Journal of Urban Planning and Development, Vol. 132, No. 1, March 2006; and  
Ben Still and David Simmonds. Parking restraint policy and urban vitality. Transportation Reviews, Vol 20, No 
3, 2000. 

-41-

Item A.



Investments in EWEB Riverfront Site: Triple Bottom Line Analysis May 2015  

extensive public transportation system is available, connecting the destination to residences 
throughout the community.  

Adequate parking is essential to commercial and retail activity. Without adequate parking, some 
firms and retailers will find an area undesirable and will choose to locate elsewhere. How much 
parking is adequate is a much more difficult question to answer.  

10. 10. 10. 10. Willamette to WillametteWillamette to WillametteWillamette to WillametteWillamette to Willamette    
Willamette to Willamette is a Plan with implementation strategies to improve the public realm 
between Willamette Street and the Willamette River. City staff have recently begun to identify the 
scope of the Plan. At this time, it is expected to cover 8th Avenue and is likely to include changes 
such as converting it to a two-way street, creating pedestrian amenities, and enhancing the 
landscaping. The modifications will create a sense of connectivity between the downtown core and 
the riverfront site. 

Estimated Cost and FundingEstimated Cost and FundingEstimated Cost and FundingEstimated Cost and Funding    
Planning and designed work will be conducted using existing budgeting resources. The cost of 
construction is not yet known. Potential funding sources include Riverfront Urban Renewal (for 
portions within the Riverfront Urban Renewal District. 

Social EquitySocial EquitySocial EquitySocial Equity    

ImproveImproveImproveImprove    pedestrian access to riverfront sitepedestrian access to riverfront sitepedestrian access to riverfront sitepedestrian access to riverfront site    

The enhancements will improve the pedestrian experience along 8th Avenue. Landscaping and 
wider sidewalks will make it more pleasant to walk between the downtown core and the riverfront.  

ImproveImproveImproveImprove    connectivityconnectivityconnectivityconnectivity    for all transportation modesfor all transportation modesfor all transportation modesfor all transportation modes    

The aim of the Plan will be to improve the connectivity for cars, bikes, and pedestrians, so the route 
between the two areas is inviting and easily navigated.  

Complement downtown revitalizationComplement downtown revitalizationComplement downtown revitalizationComplement downtown revitalization    

The enhanced public realm amenities will realize the Eugene Downtown Plan vision for downtown 
as an active, strong urban core connected to the river.  

Environmental HealthEnvironmental HealthEnvironmental HealthEnvironmental Health    

Increase energy and materials use during construction periodIncrease energy and materials use during construction periodIncrease energy and materials use during construction periodIncrease energy and materials use during construction period    

The construction of the infrastructure will consume natural resources, including gravel, concrete, 
and other materials. The construction equipment will generate greenhouse gasses and other 
emissions.  

Decrease average miles drivenDecrease average miles drivenDecrease average miles drivenDecrease average miles driven, carbon emissions, and other auto, carbon emissions, and other auto, carbon emissions, and other auto, carbon emissions, and other auto----oriented pollutantsoriented pollutantsoriented pollutantsoriented pollutants    

Improving the pedestrian and bicycle route between the downtown core and the riverfront will 
increase the likelihood that individuals will choose to bike or walk between the two areas.  

-42-

Item A.



Investments in EWEB Riverfront Site: Triple Bottom Line Analysis May 2015  

Economic ProsperityEconomic ProsperityEconomic ProsperityEconomic Prosperity    

Improve business accessImprove business accessImprove business accessImprove business access    

Well-designed public spaces improve the physical appeal of a commercial area, making it a more 
desirable location for businesses.  

Enhance property valuesEnhance property valuesEnhance property valuesEnhance property values    

The enhanced public spaces will create a sense of place that makes the riverfront site a desirable 
location, which will enhance nearby property values. 

-43-

Item A.



 



ATTACHMENT C 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RIVERFRONT RENEWAL LOAN PROGRAM 
(River Loans) 

 
Guidelines 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Urban Renewal Agency 
of the City of Eugene, Oregon 

 

& 
 

City of Eugene 
Planning & Development Department 

 
 

May 2015 
 

-45-

Item A.



2 
Riverfront Renewal Loan Program Guidelines 

Effective Date: ______________ 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION ................................................................................................................................... 3 
 
ELIGIBILITY ............................................................................................................................................................. 3 
 
INELIGIBLE PROJECTS ........................................................................................................................................ 3 
 
PROGRAM TERMS ................................................................................................................................................. 4 

Matching Funds ................................................................................................................................................. 4 
Amount ................................................................................................................................................................. 4 
Rate ........................................................................................................................................................................ 4 
Term ...................................................................................................................................................................... 4 
Collateral .............................................................................................................................................................. 4 
Fees ........................................................................................................................................................................ 4 

 
PROJECT PREFERENCE CRITERIA ................................................................................................................. 5 
 
LOAN ADVISORY COMMITTEE ........................................................................................................................ 5 
 
APPLICATION PROCESS ..................................................................................................................................... 6 
 
MISCELLANEOUS .................................................................................................................................................. 6 
 

-46-

Item A.



3 
Riverfront Renewal Loan Program Guidelines 

Effective Date: ______________ 
 

PROGRAM DESCRIPTION 
The Riverfront Renewal Loan Program (River Loans) is a revolving loan program designed to 
encourage capital investment within the Riverfront Urban Renewal District.  The primary goal of 
River Loans is to provide funding assistance to projects that meet the goals and objectives of the 
following planning documents: Riverfront Urban Renewal District Plan, EWEB Riverfront Master 
Plan, and the Eugene Downtown Plan.  River Loans are designed to be flexible and responsive to 
unique redevelopment opportunities, specific redevelopment challenges, and specific individual 
project financing needs of the Riverfront area. 
 
River Loans are designed to encourage the following types of development: private, non-profit, 
mixed-use, and public/private partnerships.  
 
River Loans are funded through Urban Renewal District program revenue (i.e., non-tax increment 
dollars) with an initial capital investment of approximately one million dollars. 
 
The Riverfront Urban Renewal Plan authorizes River Loans in Section 600.E.: 
 

The Renewal Agency also is authorized to provide loans or other forms of financial assistance 
to property owners wishing to develop or redevelop land or buildings within the renewal area, 
or to persons desiring to acquire or lease buildings or land from the Agency. The Agency may 
make this assistance available as it deems necessary to achieve the objectives of this Plan. 
Projects receiving Agency assistance may include:  

• Assisting in redevelopment of commercial warehouses in the Courthouse area,  
• Assisting the construction or expansion of job-creating developments, and  
• Assisting in the development of housing and mixed use projects.  

 
 
ELIGIBILITY 
Applicants of River Loans must be located within the Riverfront District (Map A). Applicants may 
be for profit or not-for-profit entities, new or existing businesses/property owners who are 
located, or will be located, in the Riverfront District.  Eligible projects must demonstrate a need for 
River Loans financing.  Examples of need may include: insufficient loan to value, insufficient cash 
flow, and extraordinary project specific costs. 
 
Eligible projects include building rehabilitation, renovation, façade improvements, historic 
preservation, tenant improvements, accessibility, pedestrian cover, and general property 
improvements.  Soft costs related to the development project are considered eligible and may be 
financed.  Non-construction related costs, such as equipment and fixtures, may be eligible as part 
of a total development project. 
 
INELIGIBLE PROJECTS 
River Loans may not be used for the following: projects located outside of the Riverfront District, 
refinancing of existing debt, projects for which private funds are otherwise available, projects 

-47-

Item A.



4 
Riverfront Renewal Loan Program Guidelines 

Effective Date: ______________ 
 

encompassing routine maintenance and/or repairs, or any project that is in violation of any 
Federal, State, or local laws or regulations. 
 
PROGRAM TERMS 
The following terms of River Loans are intended to provide additional flexibility over other public 
lending programs to accommodate and adapt to the changing needs of the Riverfront District. 
Therefore, the agency Director or his/her designee has the authority and discretion to alter, 
amend, waive or otherwise make an exception to any of the following terms. 

 
Matching Funds 
River Loans provide project financing typically between 25% and 50% of total eligible project 
costs, subject to demonstrated financial need.  Remaining project financing can be provided by 
equity, bank financing, and other forms of private lending.  Other forms of matching funds will 
be reviewed on a case-by-case basis.  Projects in need of greater funding assistance from River 
Loans will be reviewed and are subject to the approval of the agency Director or his/her 
designee. 
 
Amount 
Loan amounts shall be between $10,000 and $500,000.  Applications outside the stated loan 
range will be accepted for review and will be subject to the approval of the agency Director or 
his/her designee.  For example, pedestrian cover is an eligible and desired project that may be 
under the stated loan limit. 
 
Rate 
Interest rates may vary based on project needs.  Interest rates are based on the prevailing 
prime rate of interest at the time of closing.  The interest rate shall be set between 2.5% above 
or below the prevailing prime rate of interest, established by the western edition of the Wall 
Street Journal, at the time of closing and shall be fixed for the term of the loan.  The minimum 
rate of interest charged on River Loans shall be 3%. 
 
Term 
Loan repayment terms are based on individual projects.  Terms are typically set between 
seven and ten years and will not ordinarily exceed the average life of the asset.  In some cases 
exceptions may be made, for example, longer amortization schedules with principal balloon 
payments. 
 
Collateral 
Security will be required, as necessary, to adequately collateralize River Loans.  Security will 
usually consist of liens against real property and/or business personal property, personal 
guarantees of all principals who hold more than a 20% ownership interest, and may include 
personal assets of the property/business owner(s). 
 
Fees 
Applicants are charged a $50 non-refundable application fee, a 1% loan fee, and all related 
closing costs. 

-48-

Item A.



5 
Riverfront Renewal Loan Program Guidelines 

Effective Date: ______________ 
 

 
PROJECT PREFERENCE CRITERIA 
Projects selected for funding must meet the goals and objectives of the planning documents 
mentioned above under Program Description.  Additionally, the following project preference 
criteria will be used to evaluate projects:  

 
Density – positively contributes to the increased density of riverfront development. 
 
Design – use of high quality materials, and design elements such as prominent entries, 
display windows, tall first floors, and other architectural elements that enhance the 
pedestrian realm. 
 
Employment – brings new jobs to the Riverfront District. 
 
Energy Conservation – incorporation of energy conservation measures. 
 
Increased Assessed Value – significantly increase the taxable value of property. 
 
Location – project is located on a Great Street (as identified in the Eugene Downtown Plan). 
 
Matching Funds – ratio of private and public funds invested in the project. 
 
Redevelopment – utilization of vacant or severely underdeveloped buildings. 
 
Residential – creation of new housing units. 
 
Risk – demonstration of market feasibility and loan repayment ability. 
 
Timeliness – ability to move forward with the project in a timely manner. 
 
Vibrancy – enhancement of foot traffic and nighttime activity. 
 

LOAN ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
The Loan Advisory Committee (LAC) reviews all loan proposals prior to final approval.  The six-
member community advisory committee serves as a sounding board to ensure that all loans meet 
a public purpose and are likely to be repaid.  The LAC is comprised of two bankers, one 
accountant, one business person, one neighborhood representative, and one voter pool 
representative.  If members from the LAC have a personal or institutional financial interest in the 
proposed project, they will abstain from participating in the meeting.   

 

-49-

Item A.



6 
Riverfront Renewal Loan Program Guidelines 

Effective Date: ______________ 
 

APPLICATION PROCESS 
The processing time for a loan depends on the project.  Generally, the processing time for a 
complete application is three to five weeks.  The following is a summary of the steps in the review 
process: 
 

1. Potential applicant(s) meet(s) with City staff to determine eligibility, discuss credit criteria, 
and application process (includes application and other required documents necessary for 
credit analysis). 

 
2. Applicant submits formal application (including required information regarding project 

and business) and $50 application fee. 
 

3. City staff performs a detailed review and analysis of the application. 
 

4. A Credit Memorandum, along with a recommendation, is presented to the Loan Advisory 
Committee (LAC). 

 
5. The LAC recommendation is then forwarded to the Agency Director (or designated 

representative) for final approval or denial. 
 

6. Notification is sent to applicant in the form of an offer letter or declination letter. 
 
MISCELLANEOUS 
Cost estimates or firm bids from a licensed and bonded contractor must be submitted for a project. 
 
City staff shall monitor the progress of the project, including on-site visits, for determination and 
authorization of progressive loan disbursements and work completion according to bid 
documents and loan agreements. 
 
It is the responsibility of the loan recipient to maintain and submit documentation of the project 
and progression of the project for compliance according to loan agreements. 
 
QUESTIONS 
Please contact Aaron Doreen, Community Development Division at 682-5448. 

-50-

Item A.



7 
Riverfront Renewal Loan Program Guidelines 

Effective Date: ______________ 
 

Map A 

 

-51-

Item A.



 



-53-

Item
 A

.



Create a river district neighborhood 
Provide an inviting place along the river 
Enhance riverfront connectivity 
Strengthen regional economic identity 
Build towards a river district concept 

-54-

Item
 A

.



Last meeting:  March 10, 2015 
Key Next Steps: EWEB/Foundation Team  

• Property Appraisal 

• Memorandum of Agreement 

• Purchase and Sale Agreement 

-55-

Item
 A

.



Last meeting:  March 10, 2015 
Key Next Steps:   
City of Eugene & Foundation Team 

• Action on immediate and 

upcoming projects  

• Triple bottom line analysis 

-56-

Item
 A

.



 
May 13, 2015  
1. Strategic investments 
2. TBL analysis 
 

5 

-57-

Item
 A

.



-58-

Item
 A

.



Riverfront 

Park 

Railroad 

Quiet 
Zone 

8th & Hilyard 
Crossing 

Walnut 
Station  

Plan 

River 

Loans 

Willamette 
to 

Willamette 

Plan 

Bike 

Share 

Shared 
use 

Path 

Affordable 

Housing 

Historic 

Preservation 

-59-

Item
 A

.



8th and Hilyard Crossing 

 
 

Action Item 

8 

-60-

Item
 A

.



8th and Hilyard Crossing 

Realign the existing railroad crossing including 
quiet zone measures 

Action: 
Include $140,000 in RURD funds to design the 
crossing in June supplemental budget 

 

 

 

Action Item 

9 

-61-

Item
 A

.



Quiet Zone 

 

Action Item 

10 

-62-

Item
 A

.



Quiet Zone 

Implement infrastructure improvements to create 
quiet zone  

Action: 
Include $100,000 RURD funds to begin quiet 
zone design in June supplemental budget 

Action Item 

11 

-63-

Item
 A

.



Riverfront Park 
Upcoming 

Image: UO Foundation 

12 

-64-

Item
 A

.



Bike Share 

 

Upcoming 

13 

-65-

Item
 A

.



Shared Use Path 
Upcoming 

14 

-66-

Item
 A

.



Walnut Station 

 

Action/Upcoming 

Walnut Station  
July 2010 

15 

-67-

Item
 A

.



Historic Preservation:   
Bow Truss Building 

Upcoming 

16 

-68-

Item
 A

.



River Loans 
• Item: 

• New revolving loan program designed to encourage capital investment within the 
Riverfront Urban Renewal District. The primary goal of River Loans is to provide funding 
assistance to projects that meet the goals and objectives of the Riverfront Urban 
Renewal District Plan, EWEB Riverfront Master Plan, and the Eugene Downtown Plan. 
The program is designed to be flexible and responsive to unique redevelopment 
opportunities, challenges, and specific individual project financing needs of the riverfront 
area. It is intended to encourage private, non-profit, and public/private partnership 
development. The program is modeled after the Downtown Revitalization Loan Fund, 
which has assisted numerous property owners and businesses in the Downtown Urban 
Renewal District. The River Loans program will be funded through Urban Renewal 
District program revenue (i.e., non-tax increment dollars) with an initial loan pool of $1 
million dollars to be appropriated in the FY16 Budget. 

•   

• Action: 

• The Riverfront Urban Renewal Plan requires the Urban Renewal Agency to adopt the 
loan program guidelines.  

 

 

Action Item 

Image: UO Foundation 

17 

-69-

Item
 A

.



River Loans 

• New flexible revolving loan program modeled after 
downtown loan program  

• Projects must implement the Riverfront Urban 
Renewal Plan, the Riverfront Master Plan and the 
Downtown Plan. 

• Funded through Urban Renewal District with initial 
loan pool of $1 million dollars  

Action: 
Approve the loan program guidelines.  

 

 

Action Item 

18 

-70-

Item
 A

.



Willamette to Willamette Plan 
Upcoming 

 

19 

-71-

Item
 A

.



Affordable Housing 
Upcoming 

Image: UO Foundation 

20 

-72-

Item
 A

.



Upcoming 

• Willamette to Willamette 
Implementation 

• Walnut Station Implementation 
• Historic Preservation: Steam Plant 
• Enhanced Infrastructure 
• Parks and Open Space       

System Plan 
• Parking 

Image: UO Foundation 21 

-73-

Item
 A

.



Triple Bottom Line (TBL) 

22 

-74-

Item
 A

.



Key Findings from TBL Analysis 

• Development without displacement 
• 20-minute neighborhood 
• Destination development  
• Expanded property tax base  
• Cultural identity and place-making  
• Brownfield site restoration 

-75-

Item
 A

.



 
 
 

SUGGESTED URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY BOARD 
MOTIONS 
• Move to include the use of $140,000 of RURD funds 

for the design of the relocation of the 8th Avenue 
crossing on the June supplemental budget. 

• Move to include the use of $100,000 of RURD funds 
for design of the Quiet Zone on the June supplemental 
budget. 

• Move to approve the River Loans program guidelines. 
SUGGESTED CITY COUNCIL MOTION 

• Move to approve the submittal of an STP-U funding 
appropriation request of $850,000 for the development 
of the Franklin Boulevard facility plan and 
environmental studies with the intention to use RURD 
funds of $95,000 for the grant match. 

24 

-76-

Item
 A

.



Image: UO Foundation 

-77-

Item
 A

.



 


	AGENDA
	CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION and MEETING OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY 
Harris Hall
	A. A.	WORK SESSION:
									Eugene Water & Electric Board Riverfront Redevelopment 											Project and Riverfront Urban Renewal District Investments
	[Agenda Item Summary]
	[Attachment A]
	[Attachment B]
	[Attachment C]
	[EWEB PowerPoint.pdf]



